
Document Number: 2468316 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM 
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, 
ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

Watch Livestream at cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
View complete Agenda Package at cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

The City of North Vancouver respectfully acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the traditional 
and unceded territories of the Skwxwú7mesh (Squamish) and Səl̓ílwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh) Nations. 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, February 12, 2024

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 5, 2024

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

*3. Board in Brief – Metro Vancouver Regional District, January 26, 2024

BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 

4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004” (Jim
Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763)

5. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.,
351 West 3rd Street, CD-763, Rental Housing Commitments)

REPORT 

6. North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006

BYLAW – RESCIND THIRD READING 

7. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 2

BYLAW – AMEND BYLAW AND THIRD READING, AS AMENDED 

8. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”

NOTICE OF MOTION 

9. B.C. Arts Council Funding – Councillor McIlroy

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 

COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

NOTICES OF MOTION 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 

ADJOURN 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 3

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, February 12, 2024

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 5, 2024

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 

The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.”  The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 
2 minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio 
recorded, as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 

Speakers may only speak on the same matter once in a 3-month period. 

Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting in person in the Council 
Chamber or electronically via Webex.  There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input 
Period. 

1) IN PERSON:  Speakers who choose to participate in person must sign the speaker list
located outside the Council Chamber between 5:30 and 5:55pm on the day of the Council
meeting.

2) ELECTRONICALLY VIA WEBEX:  Speakers who choose to participate electronically must
pre-register by 12:00 noon on the day of the Council meeting by completing the online form
at cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod, or by phoning 604-990-4230.  These pre-registrants will
receive instructions by email or phone on the afternoon before the Council meeting.

If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the 
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the Council Meeting. 

The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for comment only and places the speaker’s 
concern on record, without the expectation of a response from Council.  Speakers must comply with 
the General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” 
and may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 12.25(2). 

Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public 
Hearing/Public Meeting or to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when 
those matters are scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, as an opportunity for public input is 
provided when the particular item comes forward for discussion. 

Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by their surname”.  Councillors 
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 4

CONSENT AGENDA 

Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 

START OF CONSENT AGENDA 

CORRESPONDENCE 

*3. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, January 26, 2024
– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2023

Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated January 26, 2024, 
regarding the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 

4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004” (Jim
Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763)

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004” (Jim
Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763) be given first, second
and third readings.

Application considered by Council on January 22, 2024; notice published on
January 31 and February 7, 2024.

No Public Hearing held.

5. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.,
351 West 3rd Street, CD-763, Rental Housing Commitments)

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments
Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763, Rental Housing Commitments) be given first,
second and third readings.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 5

REPORT 

6. North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 – File: 09-4250-20-0008/1

Report: Corporate Officer and Chief Financial Officer, February 1, 2024

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
dated February 1, 2024, entitled “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City
Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”:

THAT third reading of the “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks
Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be rescinded;

THAT the “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be amended by:

a) replacing “Neighborhood” with “Neighbourhood”;
b) replacing the first Whereas clause with the following:

“WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to design and construct a new 
North Shore Neighbourhood House community facility, Kings Mill 
Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park”; 

c) replacing the second Whereas clause with the following:
“AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of designing and constructing 
the new North Shore Neighbourhood House community facility, and 
the two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern 
Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of 
$66,475,000, of which the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of 
debt intended to be borrowed from the Municipal Financing 
Authority for these capital projects as authorized by this Bylaw”; 

d) replacing Section 2. with the following:
“The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake 
and carry out, or cause to be carried out, the design and 
construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House 
community facility, and two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park 
and 1600 Eastern Park, generally in accordance with general plans 
on file in the municipal office and to do all things necessary in 
connection therewith and without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing”; 

e) replacing Section 2., Subsection A. with the following:
“To borrow on the credit of the City a total amount not exceeding 
$55,700,000, with up to $49,500,000 being allocated to the North 
Shore Neighbourhood House, up to $4,300,000 being allocated to 
Kings Mill Walk Park and up to $1,900,000 being allocated to 1600 
Eastern Park”; 

AND THAT the “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be given third reading, as amended. 

Items 7 and 8 refer. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 6

BYLAW – RESCIND THIRD READING 

7. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT third reading of “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be rescinded.

BYLAW – AMEND BYLAW AND THIRD READING, AS AMENDED 

8. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”

THAT the “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be amended and given third reading, as amended.

NOTICE OF MOTION 

9. B.C. Arts Council Funding – File: 01-0400-01-0001/2024

Submitted by Councillor McIlroy

RECOMMENDATION:

WHEREAS investing in arts, culture, and heritage has proven social, economic,
and educational benefits for communities small and large across the province;

AND WHEREAS the arts, culture, and heritage sector has been chronically
underfunded in B.C. compared to other regions in Canada;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request that the Province of B.C.
increase the B.C. Arts Councils’ annual budget to a minimum of $55 million in the
2025/26 budget.

Background Information, January 31, 2024



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – February 12, 2024 Page 7 
 

 

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(e) [land matter]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

Document Number: 2467617 V1 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2024 

 
 

PRESENT 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 

STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
Councillor T. Valente 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
B. Pearce, Deputy CAO  
A. Cifarelli, Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Manager, Legislative and Election Services 
L. Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 
D. Van Heerden, Manager, Financial Planning 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
K. Magnusson, Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment 
B. Willock, Deputy Director, Infrastructure Management 
D. Hutch, Deputy Director, Parks and Public Spaces 
J. Hall, Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 
D. Priestly, Section Manager, Parks Operations 
J. Klochnyk, Manager, Public Works 
M. Kwaterska, Manager, Shipyards and Waterfront 
S. Galloway, Director, Planning and Development 
J. Draper, Deputy Director, Planning and Development 
T. Ryce, Chief Building Official 
G. Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 
S. Smith, Manager, Economic Development 
E. Doran, Director, People and Culture 
A. Gibbs, Senior Manager, Communications and Engagement 
H. Turner, Director, Recreation and Culture, NVRC 
P. Rooke, Manager, Finance, NVRC  
D. Koep, Chief Librarian, NVCL 
D. Foldi, Senior Project Manager 
S. Peters, Manager, Client and Technical Services 
S. Tandon, Committee Clerk 
V. Webb, Administrative Coordinator 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
The Mayor acknowledged the Lunar New Year and invited the community to visit the 
lantern and light display in Living Lane. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, February 5, 2024 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-1 

  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, January 22, 2024 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-2 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamations: 
 

Heart Month – February 2024 

Black History Month – February 2024 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 

• Nathan Davidowicz, 7680 Columbia Street, Vancouver, spoke regarding 
TransLink’s 10-year Investment Plan and the lack of consultation with the City. 

• Scott Paterson, 109-170 West 4th Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the 
removal of the tennis courts at the Cloverley redevelopment site and the need for 
additional courts in the City. 

• Robert Luo, East 16th Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the removal of the 
tennis courts at the Cloverley redevelopment site and the need for additional courts 
in the City. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8970” (Three Shores 

Management / Integra Architecture Inc., 275 East 2nd Street, CD-761) 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8970” (Three 
Shores Management / Integra Architecture Inc., 275 East 2nd Street, CD-761) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
R2024/3-3 

 
  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION – Continued 
 
4. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2023, No. 8971” (Three Shores Management / Integra 

Architecture Inc., 275 East 2nd Street, CD-761, Rental Housing Commitments) 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2023, No. 8971” (Three Shores Management / 
Integra Architecture Inc., 275 East 2nd Street, CD-761, Rental Housing Commitments) 
be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
R2024/3-4 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
DELEGATION 
 

Reid Shier, Director, and Jessica Bouchard, Associate Director, The Polygon 
Gallery – The Polygon Gallery – Operational Update 

 
Reid Shier, Director, and Jessica Bouchard, Associate Director, The Polygon Gallery, 
provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the “The Polygon Gallery – Operational 
Update” and responded to questions of Council. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
5. Reid Shier, Director, The Polygon Gallery, December 7, 2023 
 

Re: The Polygon Gallery – Operational Update 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 

 
THAT the correspondence from Reid Shier, Director, The Polygon Gallery, dated 
December 7, 2023, regarding “The Polygon Gallery – Operational Update”, be 
received for information. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-5 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
 
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT the meeting recess to the Finance Committee Meeting regarding the “Draft 
2024-2028 Financial Plan”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Finance Committee Meeting at 6:49 pm and reconvened at 
9:20 pm. 
 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

REPORT 
 
6. Draft 2024-2028 Financial Plan – File: 05-1700-01-0001/2024 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, January 25, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated January 25, 2024, 
entitled “Draft 2024-2028 Financial Plan”: 
 
THAT Council provide input on the 2024 Draft Operating Budget, 2024 Draft 
Shipyards Budget, 2024 Draft Cemetery Budget, and Proposed New Items that 
reflect options for a baseline tax rate increase of 6.5-7.5%; 

 
THAT Council provide feedback on the 2024-2028 Draft Capital Plan; 

 
THAT the 2024 Draft Operating Budget, 2024 Draft Shipyards Budget, 2024 Draft 
Cemetery Budget, and 2024-2028 Draft Capital Plan be amended based on the 
feedback received and brought back to a subsequent meeting for Council’s 
consideration; 
 
AND THAT “Affordable Housing Reserve Fund Bylaw, 1996, No. 6757, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9007” (Text Amendment) be considered. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-6 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
7. “Affordable Housing Reserve Fund Bylaw, 1996, No. 6757, Amendment Bylaw, 

2024, No. 9007” (Text Amendment) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 
 

THAT “Affordable Housing Reserve Fund Bylaw, 1996, No. 6757, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9007” (Text Amendment) be given first and second readings. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 
 

THAT “Affordable Housing Reserve Fund Bylaw, 1996, No. 6757, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9007” (Text Amendment) be given third reading. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-7 

 
  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

REPORT 
 
8. Council Appointments to the Civic Youth Awards, Centennial Scholarships and 

Children and Youth Initiatives Fund Committee – File: 01-0360-20-0010/2024 
 

Report: Community Development Coordinator, January 24, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard  

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Community Development Coordinator, dated 
January 24, 2024, entitled “Council Appointments to the Civic Youth Awards, 
Centennial Scholarships and Children and Youth Initiatives Fund Committee”: 
 
THAT Councillor McIlroy and Councillor Shahriari be appointed to the Civic Youth 
Awards, Centennial Scholarships and Children and Youth Initiatives Fund 
Committee; 
 
AND THAT the North Vancouver Board of Education be invited to appoint one City 
School Trustee to be a member of the committee to review the grant applications 
and youth award nominations submitted for the year 2024. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-8 

 
NOTICE OF MOTION 
 
9. Intersection Cameras for Safer Streets – File: 11-5460-01-0001/2024 
 
 Submitted by Councillor McIlroy and Councillor Valente 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 

 
WHEREAS most crashes in British Columbia happen at intersections and speed 
was the number one contributing factor in fatal crashes in BC between 2018 and 
2022; 
 
AND WHEREAS intersection cameras, for both speed and red light infractions, can 
be implemented quickly and have been proven to be a cost-effective method of 
improving intersection safety; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM call upon the BC government to install 
speed and red light cameras at all intersections across BC with 20 or more casualty 
crashes recorded between 2018-2022;  
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that UBCM call upon the BC government to 
allow local governments to install speed and red light cameras at their own expense 
and directly collect fines to be invested in implementing road safety improvements. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

R2024/3-9 
 

  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
Nil. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Councillor McIlroy advised of her intention to bring forward a Notice of Motion at the next 
Regular Council meeting regarding “BC Arts Funding Council”. 
 
Councillor Valente advised of his intention to bring forward two Notices of Motion at a future 
Regular Council meeting regarding “Strata Discrimination against Families” and “Green 
Infrastructure”. 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant to 
the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(a) [personal information], 90(1)(d) [security 
of City property], 90(1)(e) [land matter] and 90(1)(m) [exclusion under another 
enactment]. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 9:28 pm and 
reconvened at 10:08 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
10. Personal Information – 07-2685-01-0001/2024 

 
Report: Corporate Officer, January 24, 2024 

 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated January 24, 2024, 
regarding personal information: 

 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) be ratified; 

 
AND THAT the wording of the resolution and the report of the Corporate Officer, 
dated January 24, 2024, remain in the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-10 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued 
 
11. Security of City Property / Exclusion under another Enactment 
 – File: 01-0340-50-0001/1 

 
Report: Chief Administrative Officer, January 30, 2024 

 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Administrative Officer, dated January 30, 
2024, regarding security of City property and exclusion under another enactment: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) be ratified; 
 
AND THAT the wording of the resolution and the report of the Chief Administrative 
Officer, dated January 30, 2024, remain in the Closed session. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-11 

 
12. Land Matter – File:  13-6410-01-0001/2024 

 
Report: Acting Manager, Development Services, January 24, 2024 

 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Acting Manager, Development Services, dated 
January 24, 2024, regarding a land matter: 

 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) be ratified; 

 
AND THAT the wording of the resolution and the report of the Acting Manager, 
Development Services, dated January 24, 2024, remain in the Closed session. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-12 

 
13. 2024 Appointments to the Integrated Transportation Committee  
 – File: 01-0360-20-0040/2024 

 
Report: Corporate Officer, January 10, 2024 
 

Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated January 10, 2024, entitled 
“2024 Appointments to the Integrated Transportation Committee”: 
 
THAT Lailani Tumaneng, School District No. 44 representative, be appointed to the 
Integrated Transportation Committee for the term that concludes following the 2026 
general local election; 

Continued… 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued 
 
13. 2024 Appointments to the Integrated Transportation Committee  
 – File: 01-0360-20-0040/2024 – Continued 

 
THAT Matthew Cusanelli, Brady Faught and Richard Walton be appointed to the 
Integrated Transportation Committee for the term commencing on February 1, 2024 
and concluding on January 31, 2026; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Corporate Officer, dated January 10, 2024, entitled 
“2024 Appointments to the Integrated Transportation Committee”, remain in the 
Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024/3-13 

 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:09 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



metrova ncouver 

4515 Central Blvd, Burnaby, BC V5H 4J5 604-432-6200 

For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, January 26, 2024 

~' 

BOARD IN BRIEF 
m etrovancouve r. org 

Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material relating to any of the 
following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. For more information, please contact: 
media@metrovancouver.org. 

Metro Vancouver Regional District 

El.1 Regional Park at Cape Roger Curtis - Project Update RECEIVED 

Regional Park staff continue to work through the Bowen Island Municipality (BIM) rezoning and Official 
Community Plan (OCP) amendment process required to allow for supervised overnight tent camping in the 
proposed regional park at Cape Roger Curtis. 

In July 2023, BIM council referred the park proposal, draft rezoning and OCP amendment bylaws, and a list 
of conditional requirements to advisory committees, external agencies, Islands Trust, and First Nations. 
Phase 2 public engagement took place July 29 to August 16, 2023. On August 25, 2023, the Islands Trust 
Executive Committee resolved that the BIM rezoning and OCP amendment bylaws are contrary to or at 
variance with the Islands Trust Policy Statement. BIM subsequently asked Metro Vancouver to submit an 
amended proposal to comply with the Islands Trust Policy Statement prior to consideration of second 
reading. 

Staff have provided detailed responses to the Islands Trust decision and conditional requirements to BIM, 
and requested clarity on the next steps in the rezoning and OCP amendment process. 

The Board received the report for information. 

E2.1 Climate 2050: Priority Actions to Accelerate Toward our Regional Targets RECEIVED 

The Board has adopted the targets and plans aligned with the global science to avoid the worst impacts of 
climate change. Metro Vancouver's Clean Air Plan and Climate 2050 strategy and supporting roadmaps 
outline the necessary actions and roles. This report identifies priority "Big Moves" needed to accelerate 
toward the Board-adopted greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets. 

At its January 11 meeting, the Climate Action Committee identified the importance of a broad and inclusive 
discussion on priority actions, and the need for all standing committees of the Metro Vancouver Board to 
be aware of, and understand the criticality of, these priority actions in advancing substantive climate action 
toward the Board adopted climate action targets. Given that affordability and housing challenges are top 
of mind for the residents of Metro Vancouver, it is important to ensure that there is broader discussion 
about the regulatory opportunities for Metro Vancouver in the building, transportation, and industrial 
sectors, and a good understanding of the range of supportive policies and equity outcomes that are 
imperative for any regulatory policy success. 

The Board received the report for information and directed staff to forward a copy of the report to the 
Caucus of Committee Chairs for discussion and information. 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BR IEF 
4515 Centra l Blvd, Burnaby, BC V5H 4J5 604-LI 32-6200 metrovancouver.org 

E2.2 Proposed Regulatory Approach to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Existing 
Large Buildings: Phase 2 Engagement 

NOT 
ENDORSED 

This report requested a second phase of engagement on a regulatory approach for reducing GHG emissions 
from existing large buildings (over 2,322 square metres or 25,000 square feet). The report sought Board 
direction to engage further with impacted and interested audiences on a regulatory intentions paper, which 
describes an approach to setting GHG emissions reporting requirements and final GHG limits for about 
9,000 large buildings in the region. This represents less than two per cent of the region's overall existing 
building stock, yet these buildings contribute 35 per cent of building sector GHG emissions . 

The Board did not support the proposal to proceed with the next phase of engagement. 

E3.1 Renewal of MVRD Internal Financing of MVHC Mortgages APPROVED 

The Board approved the MVRD continuing to provide first mortgage financing on four MVHC properties 
(Manor House, Regal Place Hotel, Cedarwood Place, and Crown Manor). The mortgages will be for another 
five-year term, and will have a variable interest rate based upon Metro Vancouver's internal rate of return 
on investments. The Board directed the Corporate Officer to publish in the newspaper, pursuant to 
requirements of Section 272 of the Local Government Act, Metro Vancouver's intention to lend money to 
the MVHC. 

E4.1 Metro 2050 Implementation Guideline - Industrial and Employment Lands APPROVED 

The Board endorsed the Metro 2050 Implementation Guideline - Industrial and Employment Lands as 

presented. 

Regional Planning is in the process of developing and updating a suite of Metro 2050 implementation 
guidelines in an effort to support the interpretation and implementation of the regional growth strategy. 
This implementation guideline is intended to provide clarity about industrial land objectives, as well as how 
planning policies, market conditions, site locations, industrial sectors, and local contexts influence the 
implementation of these objectives. It also provides guidance for member jurisdictions on how to best 
support the protection and efficient development and use of industrial lands, while also reflecting local 
contexts and issues, during the preparation of Regional Context Statements. 

E4.2 Metro Vancouver Resident and Immigrant Behaviour Model: Phase One and Two 

Report 

RECEIVED 

The Metro Vancouver Resident and Immigrant Behaviour Model was developed to better understand 
housing and neighbourhood needs and preferences of long-term residents and immigrants. The survey 
found that both cohorts are motivated to live in the region largely due to employment opportunities and a 
favourable climate. Immigrants are more likely to move within the region, while long-term residents tend 
to remain in a single location. 

Immigrants prefer living in "the city," while long-term residents prefer living in a suburban neighbourhood. 
Both cohorts express a preference to live in neighbourhoods with a mix of housing types, shops, and 

2 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
4515 Central Blvd, Burn aby, BC V5 1-1 4J5 604-432-6200 metrovancouver.org 

businesses. Both cohorts prefer the housing type they currently live in with immigrants more likely to prefer 
apartments and multi-attached houses, and long-term residents more likely to prefer single detached 
houses. 

The Board received the report for information. 

E4.3 Metro Vancouver Housing Data Book 2023 RECEIVED 

The Metro Vancouver Housing Data Book brings together a large collection of regional and municipal level 
housing related data to support policy makers, researchers, and members of the public. The Board received 
the report for information. 

E4.4 Commercial Truck Parking on Agricultural Lands APPROVED 

Metro Vancouver staff have reviewed the matter of unauthorized commercial or heavy-duty truck parking 
on the region's agricultural lands. This issue has been an ongoing challenge for some member jurisdictions 
in the region and involves truck owner-operators parking or storing vehicles on agricultural lands because 
they have limited options. This report provides background and context of the issue, including: a summary 
of relevant policies and plans, an overview of the complexity and interconnected aspects of the issue, 
impacts on the agricultural sector, the needs of truck drivers and their operational considerations, current 
efforts to address the issue, and possible solutions that various agencies could further explore. 

The Board resolved to send a letter to the Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure and the Minister 
of Agriculture and Food advocating for provincial actions to address the issue of commercial truck parking 
on agricultural lands, and to send a copy of this report to member jurisdictions with agricultural land . 

Gl.1 Metro Vancouver Regional District Dedication of Land as Regional Park Bylaw No. 
1370,2024 

APPROVED 

Metro Vancouver has undertaken a review of its regional park land holdings. Due to changes in legislation 
and corporate practice over time, there is a significant number of regional parks parcels that are not 
dedicated as regional park by way of bylaw. This includes outstanding regional park lands owned by Metro 
Vancouver that are not currently dedicated by way of bylaw, with some exceptions of parks where Metro 
Vancouver is engaged in major projects. 

The Board gave first, second, and third readings to the Metro Vancouver Regional District Dedication of 
Land as Regional Park Bylaw No. 1370, 2024, then passed and finally adopted said bylaw. 

G2.1 Metro 2050 Type 2 Proposed Amendment - City of Maple Ridge (Yennadon Lands) APPROVED 

3 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
4515 Central Blvd, Burn aby, BC V5H 4J5 604-432-6200 metrovancouver.org 

The City of Maple Ridge requested a Type 2 Metro 2050 amendment for a 25.4-hectare site comprising 13 
properties located southwest of the intersection of 232 Street and 128 Avenue. The amendment would 
adjust the Urban Containment Boundary to include 23154128 Avenue and 12791232 Street (approximately 
two hectares in total), and re-designate the regional land uses from General Urban and Agricultural to 
Industrial and Conservation and Recreation to accommodate future industrial uses and protect a portion of 
the site for nature. 

The Board initiated a Metro 2050 amendment process for the City of Maple Ridge as requested . They gave 
first, second, and third readings to Metro Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1376, 2024 and directed staff to notify affected local governments per section 6.4.2 

of Metro 2050. 

G3.1 MFA Spring 2024 Borrowing for the Township of Langley- MVRD Security Issuing 
Bylaw No. 1377, 2024 

APPROVED 

As set out in the Community Charter, Metro Vancouver must adopt a security issuing bylaw in order to 
enable the Township of Langley to proceed with their long-term borrowing request of $25,250,000. This 

borrowing is to finance the construction of Fire Hall #5. 

The Board consented to the request for financing from the Township of Langley, gave first, second, and 
third readings to Metro Vancouver Regional District Security Issuing Bylaw No. 1377, 2024, then adopted 

said bylaw and forwarded it to the Inspector of Municipalities for Certificate of Approval. 

Hl Notice of Motion 

New Westminster Mayor Patrick Johnstone provided a notice of motion to the Board on behalf of New 
Westminster Council requesting that fair wage and living wage policies be developed and adopted by the 

regional government. 

The Board directed staff to report back on living wage and fair wage policies for the MVRD, MVHC, GVWD, 

and GVS&DD. 

11 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries 

The Board received delegation summaries from standing committees . 

Climate Action Committee - January 11, 2024 

Delegation Summaries: 

3.1 Melina Scholefield, Executive Director, Zero Emissions Innovation Centre 
Subject: Climate Action in Metro Vancouver- Retrofit Accelerator for Existing Large Buildings 

Regional Planning Committee - January 12, 2024 

4 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
45'15 Central Blvd, Burnaby, BC VSH 4J5 604-432-6200 metrovancouver.org 

Delegation Summaries: 

3.1 Marlene Best, Interim Director of Planning and Amanda Grochowich, Manager of Community 
Planning, Planning Department, City of Maple Ridge 
Subject: Urban Containment Boundary Extension and Re-designation 

Greater Vancouver Water District 

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries 

The Board received one information item from one standing committee. 

Water Committee - January 10, 2024 

Information Item: 

El.1 Cleveland Dam Safety Enhancements Program 

Metro Vancouver remains dedicated to enhancing public safety for those enjoying nature around Capilano 
River Regional Park and has completed a number of upgrades to the Cleveland Dam as well as along the 
Capilano River downstream of the dam. These include installing an interim public alarm system, enhancing 
the reliability of the Cleveland Dam mechanical and control systems, adding more warning signage along 
the river, launching a safety education website, transitioning to Alertable (an emergency mass public alert 
system), and completing two phases of public engagement. 

Design of the long-term public warning system is currently underway with new alarm sites being informed 
through on-site surveying along the Capilano River to determine patterns of public river uses. Another 
phase of engagement will take place in 2024 prior to installation and commissioning of new locations in 
2025. 

Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 

El.1 2024 Liquid Waste Capital Projects RECEIVED 

The Board approves an annual capital budget for the liquid waste system. This report provides the Board 
with geographical information regarding the location of the different projects that were approved for 2024. 

The Board received the report for information. 

El.2 Award of Contract Resulting from Standing Request for Expression of Interest No. 
23-011: Biosolids Management - Multi-Site Forage Crop Fertilization 

APPROVED 

5 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
4515 Central Blvd, Burnaby, BC V5H LIJ5 604-432-6200 metrovancouver.org 

Metro Vancouver is obligated under the Integrated Liquid Waste and Resource Management Plan to 
continuously seek and secure beneficial use options to manage our supply of biosolids in an 
environmentally, socially, and fiscally responsible manner. 

The Board approved award of a contract resulting from Standing Request for Expression of Interest No. 23-
011 for biosolids management, in the amount of up to $5,607,000 (exclusive of taxes) to SYLVIS 
Environmental Services Inc., for a term of five years with an option to extend for one additional five-year 
term subject to final review by the Commissioner. 

El.3 Award of Contract Resulting from Standing Request for Expression of Interest No. 
23-011: Biosolids Management - lngerbelle Composting Facility 

APPROVED 

Metro Vancouver is obligated under the Integrated Liquid Waste and Resource Management Plan to 
continuously seek and secure beneficial use options to manage our supply of biosolids in an 
environmentally, socially, and fiscally responsible manner. 

The Board approved award of a contract resulting from Standing Request for Expression of Interest No. 23-
011 for biosolids management, in the amount of up to $29,768,000 (exclusive of taxes) to Arrow 
Transportation Systems Inc., for a term of five years with an option to extend for one additional two-year 
term subject to final review by the Commissioner. 

El.4 Award of Contract Resulting from Request for Proposal No. 23-184: Iona Island 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Long-term Lagoon Cleaning 

APPROVED 

Metro Vancouver requires specialized services to remove and dewater digested wastewater treatment 
plant sludge from the four lagoons located at Iona Island Wastewater Treatment Plant in order to create 
space for construction of the plant upgrade projects. 

The Board approved the award of RFP No. 23-184 for Iona Wastewater Treatment Plant long-term lagoon 
cleaning in the amount of up to $29,913,644 (exclusive of taxes) to American Process Group Ltd ., for a term 
of four years with an option to extend for an additional two years, subject to final review by the 
Commissioner. 

Gl.1 Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District Sewerage and Drainage Areas 
Boundaries Amendment Bylaw No. 374, 2024 - Fraser Sewerage Area - Maple 
Ridge (14500 Silver Valley Road) 

APPROVED 

At its November 24, 2023 meeting, the MVRD Board resolved that the extension of GVS&DD sewerage 
services to four new building footprints at 14500 Silver Valley Road, Maple Ridge was generally consistent 
with the provisions of Metro 2050. The City of Maple Ridge requested a sewer area amendment application 
to the GVS&DD requesting an extension of sewer service to 14500 Silver Valley Road, which is part of UBC's 
Malcolm Knapp Research Forest. 

6 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
4515 Central Blvd, Burnaby, BC V5H 4J5 604-432-6200 m etrovanco uver.org 

The Board gave first, second, and third readings to the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 
Sewerage and Drainage Areas Boundaries Amendment Bylaw No. 374, 2024, then passed and finally 
adopted said bylaw. 

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries 

The Board received a lone information item from a single standing committee. 

Liquid Waste Committee - January 17, 2024 

Information Item: 

El 2023 "Our Ocean Thanks You" Campaign Results 

Microfibres from fabrics are one of the largest sources of micro plastics in the ocean and can be harmful to 
aquatic life. The "Our Ocean Thanks You" campaign asks residents to wash in cold water to reduce 
microfibre shedding. The campaign ran from September 12 to October 29 and targeted parents with 
children under 18. Paid media placements included social media, YouTube, television, radio, transit 
advertising, online banners, and Google Search terms, all of which directed to a campaign website. Boosted 
by creative materials featuring new marine animals, many media placement and website results were 
stronger than last year. The campaign delivered over 25 million impressions, 1.1 million video views, 13,000 
clicks for more information, 253 engagements, 11,600 website visits, and reached 845,000 residents 
through on line tactics. The campaign will run again in 2024 with a similar timing and will continue to feature 
additional marine animals as part of its creative materials. 

Metro Vancouver Housing 

El.1 Renewal of MVRD Internal Financing of MVHC Mortgages APPROVED 

The Board approved the MVRD continuing to provide first mortgage financing on four MVHC properties 
(Manor House, Regal Place Hotel, Cedarwood Place, and Crown Manor). The mortgages will be for another 
five-year term, and will have a variable interest rate based upon Metro Vancouver's internal rate of return 
on investments. The Board directed the Corporate Officer to publish in the newspaper, pursuant to 
requirements of Section 272 of the Local Government Act, Metro Vancouver's intention to lend money to 
the MVHC. 

7 



metrovancouver BOARD IN BRIEF 
4515 Central Blvd, Burnaby, BC V5H 4J5 604-432-6200 metrovan couver.org 

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries 

The Board received a solitary information item from a standing committee. 

Housing Committee - January 12, 2024 

Information Item: 

El.1 Municipal Measures to Reduce Non-Market Housing Development Costs and Approval Timelines -
Engagement Update 

Non-profit rental housing projects face a number of challenges, including increasing costs and extended 
timelines, which have been exasperated in the current economic climate. To maximize the number of 
affordable homes delivered in the region, and to ensure affordable rental housing projects remain viable, 
supportive municipal policies that reduce development costs and approval timelines for non-market 
housing are critical. This report provides an update on engagement activities undertaken to date, following 
direction from the MVHC Board to work with Metro Vancouver member jurisdictions to identify 
opportunities for more regional consistency and supportive policy measures to aid in more effective 
delivery of non-market housing in the region. 

8 



To: 

From: 

#/ ~~ . Vi 
epartment NDirector CAO 
anager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Matthew Menzel, Planner 3 

REPORT 

Subject: ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT FOR 351 WEST 3RD STREET (JIM 
PATTISON DEVELOPMENTS LTD.) 

Date: January 10, 2024 File No: 08-3400-20-0082/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 3, dated January 10, 2024, entitled 
"Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments 
Ltd.)": 

THAT the application submitted by Jim Pattison Developments Ltd., to rezone 
the property located at 351 West 3rd Street from a CS-2 Zone to a 
Comprehensive Development Zone, be considered with no Public Hearing held, 
in accordance with the Local Government Act; 

THAT notification be circulated prior to First Reading of the bylaw in accordance 
with the Local Government Act; 

AND THAT the community benefits listed in the report section "Density Bonus 
and Community Benefits" be secured through agreements at the applicant's 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2440419) 

2. Architectural Plans, dated October 27, 2023 (CityDocs 2455162) 

3. Landscape Plans, dated September 12, 2023 (CityDocs 2445127) 

4. Overview of Zoning Variances and Parking Provisioning (CityDocs 2455522) 
5. Advisory Design Panel Resolution, dated October 28, 2022 (CityDocs 2311622) 

6. Advisory Design Panel Resolution, dated October 23, 2023 (CityDocs 2425912) 

Document Number: 2402102 v2 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

7. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2226787) 

8. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004" (CityDocs 
2441535) 

9. "Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2023, No. 9005" (CityDocs 2441538) 

SUMMARY 

This report presents a rezoning application for the subject site at 351 West 3rd Street to 
permit a 5-storey renta l apartment building consisting of 53 units, six of which would be 
mid-market rental units. 

A road dedication of 3.048 metres (10 feet) , as per bylaw requirement, is to be provided 
at the northern lot line, being the West 3rd Street frontage, to facilitate future road 
upgrades. Further, a road dedication of 1.19 metres (3.9 feet) is to be provided along 
the western lot line, being the Forbes Avenue frontage, to facilitate required road and 
streetscape upgrades. 

BACKGROUND 

Applicant: Jim Pattison Developments Ltd. 
Architect: Mallen Gowinq Berzins Architecture 
Official Community Plan Residential Level 5 (RS) 
Designation: 
ExistinQ ZoninQ: CS-2 (Service Station Commercial) 
Applicable Guidelines: N/A 

DISCUSSION 

Site Context and Surrounding Use 

The site is located on the south-east corner of West 3rd Street and Forbes Avenue. Both 
West 3rd Street and Forbes Avenue are identified as arterial roads and are transit 
routes. The Forbes Avenue frontage contains an existing off-street multi-use path. 

The subject site is located within close proximity to a full range of services, public transit 
facilities and recreation opportunities within Lower Lonsdale to the south-east, and the 
Marine-Hamilton neighbourhood to the west. 

The site is surrounded by multi-family residential apartment buildings with heights 
ranging from 3 to 4-storey. Land to the west is Squamish First Nation on the opposite 
side of Forbes Avenue. 

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the site are described in Table 1 
following. 

Page 2 of9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

North (across W 3rd St.) 308 Forbes Ave RM-1 3 storey rental apartment 

South (across lane) 212 Forbes Ave RM-1 3 storey strata apartment 

East 341 W 3rd St RM-1 3 storey strata apartment 

West (across Forbes Various (Squamish 
N/A Single-family dwellings 

Ave) Nation lands) 

Policy Context 

The subject site is designated Residential Level 5 in the Official Community Plan (OCP). 
This designation has the purpose of providing quality multi-family housing with a mix of 
unit sizes, with a maximum density of 2.6 FSR (including 1.0 bonus FSR). A maximum 
height of six storeys is permitted. 

Project Description 

The application proposes a 5-storey residential rental building with one level of parking. 
Vehicle parking access is provided from the rear lane to the south. 

The following table provides an overview of the proposed development: 

Table 3: Development proposal overview 
Element Proposal 

Density 2.6 FSR 
Unit Mix 53 residential rental units, including: 

• 5 studio units; 

• 36 one-bed units; 

• 6 two-bed units; and 

• 6 three-bed units (1 1%) . 
Mid Market Rental 6 units (11 %), including: 

• 1 studio units; 

• 3 one-bed units; 

• 1 two-bed units; and 

• 1 three-bed units . 
Adaptable Units 16, Level 2 adaptable units (30%) 
Residentia l Amenity Indoor - 103 square metres (1,107 square feet) 

Outdoor (covered) - 80 square metres (865 square feet) 
Outdoor (rooftop) - 395 square metres {4,254 square feet) 

Six of the units (11 %) are proposed as mid-market units and 16 of the units (30%) are 
proposed to meet Level 2 of the Adaptable Design guidelines. All units would be 
secured through the Housing Agreement for the life of the building. 

Page 3 of 9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

PLANNING ANALYSIS 

Policy Alignment 

The proposal is consistent with the OCP land use designation and below OCP height 
limits for the site. The proposed density is 2.6 FSR, which is consistent with the OCP 
Mixed Use Level 2 land use designation. 

The proposal is in alignment with a number of OCP goals and objectives to have 
additional secured rental housing within proximity to the Lonsdale Regional City Centre 
and close to shops, services, frequent public transit and employment opportunities. 

The proposed mix of unit types meets key actions of the Housing Action Plan for mid
market rental units and family-friendly units. The proposal also exceeds the Zoning 
Bylaw minimum requirement for 25% of units to meet Level 2 Adaptable Design. The 
proposal generally addresses the Active Design Guidelines through the provision of 
indoor and outdoor amenity spaces, as well as new public realm upgrades. 

Built Form and Urban Design 

The proposed built form is consistent with the character of the neighbourhood. The 
proposed height at 18 metres and five storeys complies with the OCP and will ensure 
the building integrates with future developments on adjoining lots. The proposal 
establishes a strong street wall along both West 3rd Street and Forbes Avenue, with a 
suitable setback to the eastern side boundary to establish suitable building separation to 
the adjoining residential building. 

A high level of activation and casual surveillance of the road frontages and laneway is 
achieved through orientation of private patios, communal outdoor amenity area and 
upper level private balconies towards the corresponding road . 

The fa9ade of the building has been designed with appropriate articulation through the 
use of steps and recesses along the elevations, and use of attached balcony structures, 
which work to break up the form of the building and reduce the perceived bulk. The 
proposed development has also provided suitable landscaping treatments within the 
buildings design that will soften the visual impacts of the built form. 

Proposed Zoning Changes 

The proposed Comprehensive Development Zone will be based off of the Medium 
Density Apartment Residential 1 RM-1 Zone, consistent with the proposed use types 
and recent developments of a similar nature. To allow the massing, the proposed bylaw 
would include modifications to the RM-1 zone density, building height, setbacks and 
building width. A table summary and overview of the proposed zoning changes is 
included as Attachment 8 to this report. 

Page 4 of 9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

Parking, Loading and Transportation 

The site is located in the Lonsdale Regional City Centre, approximately 700m from the 
closest Rapid Bus Stop along Marine Drive, and 1 km from the Sea Bus Terminal and 
Lonsdale Quay Bus Exchange. The proposal will involve construction of an upgraded 
Local Bus Stop along the West 3rd Street frontage. 

The application proposes vehicle access to an underground parkade accessed from the 
southern laneway. The proposed bicycle rooms and bicycle amenity areas will be 
accessed directly from Forbes Avenue, as well as via elevator from the main residential 
lobby and parkade. 

Overall , the application generally meets the parking and loading requirements of the 
Zoning Bylaw apart from a minor variance to resident parking. The design proposes an 
equivalent of 28 parking spaces, instead of the current bylaw requirement of 32 spaces. 
Considering the central location and transportation demand management measures in 
place, this variance is supported by staff. 

An overview of the proposed parking variance and relevant statistics are included as 
part of Attachment 4 to this report. 

Off-Site Works and Infrastructure Upgrades 

The proposed development will provide appropriate off-site streetscape upgrades 
consistent with the Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw. This includes the 
reconstruction of the frontages along West 3rd Street and Forbes Avenue with the 
installation of new sidewalk, curb and gutter, street trees, street lighting, road paving, 
and an upgraded bus shelter. 

The development will also deliver a 3.048 metre road dedication along the north 
property line, as required by the Zoning Bylaw, in order to facilitate future road upgrades 
along West 3rd Street. 

In addition to the bylaw required works, the development will secure the following: 
• A $109,460.00 financial contribution for the future upgrade of sanitary sewer 

infrastructure in the local catchment area, which is currently undersized. 
• A $10,000.00 contribution for a third party review of the intersection and active 

transportation design. 
• A 3.0 metre chamfered statutory right-of-way at the corner of 3rd Street and 

Forbes Avenue to accommodate a protected intersection design, pedestrian and 
cyclist movements, and future road widening/boulevard programming. 

• A 1.19 metre road dedication along the west property line, in order to facilitate 
road and streetscape upgrades along Forbes Avenue. 

• A 2.5 metre wide statutory right-of-way on the Forbes Avenue frontage to 
accommodate the proposed boulevard programming. 

These requirements will be secured through legal agreements with the City. 

Page 5 of9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

Density Bonus and Community Benefits 

The City's Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the OCP, 
allows for density bonuses beyond 1.6 FSR in the Residential Level 5 designation, up to 
a maximum of 2.6 FSR. 

The policy provides a number of community benefits options for projects seeking 
additional density and seeks to ensure the City receives value for additional density 
granted. The community benefit offered by this proposal is an increase of the City's 
rental housing stock by 53 units, 6 of which will be mid-market rental units, secured for 
the life of the building through a Housing Agreement with the City. 

In addition to secured market and mid-market rental units, staff are seeking Council 
direction to secure the following items as conditions of this rezoning: 

• Public Art to a value of $80,000; 
• 3.048 metre road dedication along the West 3rd Street frontage; and 
• 1.19 metre road dedication along the Forbes Avenue frontage. 

Environmental Requirements 

The subject site previously contained a gas station, which is a specified industrial or 
commercial use that is listed in Schedule 2 of the provincial Contaminated Sites 
Regulation of the Environmental Management Act. In June, 2023, the City received an 
Approval in Principle letter from the province, which allows the City to proceed with the 
current rezoning application under the relevant provisions of the Local Government Act. 
The most recent Approval in Principle approved an on-site remediation plan supporting 
independent remediation of the site, to return the site to applicable standards for a 
residential development. 

As the subject site previously accommodated a gas station use, the City owned land 
adjacent to the site is also potentially affected by contamination. As a consequence, the 
applicant wi ll need to undertake the following actions prior to Bylaw adoption, to 
appropriately respond to this potential constraint: 

• Provide a report defining the extents of contamination and proposed remediation 
strategy to be approved by the Ministry of Environment; and 

• If deemed necessary, enter into a remediation agreement with the City, to 
remediate affected soils and groundwater on the subject site and City lands 
according to the approved remediation plan and to the City's satisfaction. 

Legal Agreements 

Should Counci l support this rezoning, the following legal agreements will be prepared 
and signed by the applicant prior to final adoption: 

• Development Covenant; 
• Housing Agreement; 

Page 6 of9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

• Servicing Agreement; 
• Statutory Right of Way over 3.0 metres of the subject site at the corner of 3rd 

Street and Forbes Avenue. 
• Statutory Right of Way over 2.5 metres of the subject site on the Forbes Avenue 

frontage. 
• Community Good Neighbour Agreement; 
• Crane Swing and Shoring Agreement; 
• Flooding Covenant; 
• Community Energy Agreement; and 
• Remediation Agreement (if necessary). 

The plan for the road dedications will also be required to be prepared by the applicant 
and signed and delivered to the City with the above-noted agreements prior to final 
adoption. 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

The application was originally reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on October 
28, 2022. The Panel did not recommend approval of the proposal pending resolution of 
a number of issues (refer to Appendix 4). 

The application was subsequently reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on 
October 23, 2023, with the applicant having responded to the concerns raised at the 
previous meeting. At the second meeting, the Panel recommended approval of the 
proposal subject to addressing the following issues to the satisfaction of staff: 

• Review the detailed design of the building entrance to incorporate lighting and 
further emphasize the entrance; 

• Review access to bike room from Forbes Avenue focusing on ease of 
circulation and movement; 

• Review placement of lower amenity space to provide greater access to 
natural light; 

• Review layout of adaptable units and alignment of living space with balconies 
to ensure accessibility; 

• Review sizing of Japanese Maple at the building entrance; 
• Review security of bike storage areas, building entries and the parking 

entrance; and 
• Recommend maximizing covered spaces on the rooftop. 

Revised designs were subsequently submitted that address the above concerns to the 
satisfaction of staff. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

A Developer's Information Session (DIS) was held on August 30, 2022 and was 
attended by 9 people. 4 comment forms and emails with comments were submitted 
following the DIS. One member of the community provided support for the project, one 
opposed, and two provided conditional support. 

Page 7 of 9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

The main reasons for support were: 
• Provision of new rental units and housing options; 
• Reduced vehicle parking; and 
• Appearance of the building. 

The main concerns were: 
• Providing trees within the boulevard, especially adjacent to the mobility lane; 
• Lack of commercial floor space; 
• Provision of family friendly units; 
• Reduced vehicle parking; 
• Building height and shadow impacts; and 
• Sustainability measures. 

A summary of the public consultation, as prepared by the applicant, is available in 
Attachment #7. 

Staff Response 

The boulevard has been designed to accommodate approximately 16 new street trees, 
including adjacent to the new mobility lane along Forbes Avenue. This will provide 
suitable shading to pedestrians and soften the built form elements. 

The site is designated Residential Level 5 in the OCP, and therefore no commercial 
land uses are anticipated. The site is well positioned and highly accessible to existing 
commercial services within Lower Lonsdale and the Marine Drive Frequent Transit 
Development Area. 

The proposed development has provided 6 three-bedroom units (11 %), which meets the 
Housing Action Plan in relation to providing family friendly housing. 

As outlined in Attachment 4, the minor variance to vehicle parking is supported by staff. 

Lastly, design development has taken place after the DIS, addressing comments from 
Advisory Design Panel and the public regarding the building design. Additionally, the 
development meets the City's building standards and addresses a number of goals set 
out in the City's Sustainable Development Guidelines. 

NO PUBLIC HEARING FOR OCP COMPLIANT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Pursuant to recent Provincial amendments to Section 464 of the Local Government Act, 
which came into force on November 30, 2023, the City must not hold a public hearing 
on a proposed rezoning bylaw if: an OCP is in place for the subject site; the bylaw is 
consistent with the OCP; the development is residential; and that residential component 
is at least half of the gross floor area for the development. Since all of these factors 
apply to this development, no public hearing will be held and notice will be published for 
First Reading of the Bylaw, as set out in the Local Government Act. 

Page 8 of 9 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 351 West 3rd Street (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd.) 
Date: January 10, 2024 

CONCLUSION 

This proposal is in alignment with goals and objectives of the OCP and Council 
Strategic Plan to intensify residential development within the Lonsdale Regional City 
Centre, and increase rental and mid-market units in the City. The project will also 
provide appropriate land dedications to facilitate future road upgrades along West 3rd 

Street, along with a road dedication and statutory right-of-way to facilitate provision of 
an updated mobility path along the Forbes Avenue frontage. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Matthew Menzel 
Planner 3 

Page 9 of 9 



Fo
rb

es
 A

ve

M
is

si
on

Rd

W 3rd St

W 3rd St

W
 Esplanade

W 2nd St

W 5th St

W 4th St

W 4th St

Delb
ru

ck
Ave

W
 1st St

Mah
on

 A
ve

ChiefJoseph Cres

W 2nd St

3
2

4

2 7 0

3
1

1

2 6 9

3
2

5

3 1 0

5
3

5

3 0 8

3
6

3

2 3 4

2
6

1

3 0 6

3 0 9

2 2 5

2 5 5

3
2

1

2 1 2

3
4

7

2
6

4

3
4

1

3
6

9

3
5

7

3 4 0

2 4 0

3
2

9

3
4

1

3
3

2
7

8

3
2

1

2
4

4

2
6

7

3
2

6

3
2

1

2 7 5
3

3
3

3
3

9

3 4 1

4
1

0

3 0 8

2
7

3

3
3

4

2 5 2

2 5 4

3 2 6

3 5 1

3
2

0

2 7 4

3
3

0

3 3 0

3 7 5

2
6

6

3 0 7

2
7

2

3
1

7

2 5 1

2
5

0

4
4

0

3 2 7

Attachment 1

~t!Y 
vancouver 



Attachment 2

MGBA 



PROJECT STATISTICS 

o.AtASUMM,\I",' 

.}'!llllollin.4""._._ll•.:a.-;BC 

"""""""""'' 1,q11 .Cl,IMEll,.f'1 ,01~ 1"""1Jfftl 

"''""°"""'° 
,., 

H(lf'Cltfn:ro,,am ._...... ...... 
"" 

_...,._ 
:ir1J"ARJA UflU1a"' 

"IIM(fJtO,AW)wl,J) nl!~Q 

"""" i, flQM$- MO' I-Um 
,,.,ll,WEll~FU)Oq . ....,. 
fl!CINTVl<IO l'hn1M~I ...... ., - ... 
oot:AJQRS!OC V~!,__, ..... ... 
,.Wl!OflUIC.~NIOlttllll ..... ... . .. '" UM VNIOl'-IIU.0.1 - ., - ... 
tlOOfl .,,.,.::u.,no ...... ._,__ 

~ , .. _,..,, ... .,. .. .._. ... , .. lh,I h.,,a 
, ... -·· .,..., __ _,IA~~ l-911 

,-q$l0Nlf.A- ~•-o,,, •tl)~ -~ 
, ... s,-. .... --· ~ ... t..; ........ t•i ,_,,. --, A-'-4~ ,, .. .. ., ..... ,.., .. ,., ~··~ .... ., .. .... ., .... .. ''"" ....... ,,,.. .. .... .. ,., 

"'"" ...... ,._, 7dol , . '"" ·- .,. ... '"'" 
,., 

~....,,..,s, .... ,... .. ... ,.,. 
""" .. '"' ....... ... ' _, ., . ,_, ,., ,_, 

........ .......i c-,_,.. ''"' 
,..., ...... ., .. . . .... -·· .... "., "'" 

., ., 
'" 

,., ........... ,.0,,1 ,,,~ J••r,1 ,,t...: .. ,~ 
Cd&C-..,_.,, .... .. ., .... .. ., '" 

,., -·- ,.,. ..... .. ..... ,., .. ,.., 
{,i,.,,..,-1,1',p.,• 11.,. tu -i I"'• ,,.., .. .. , 

~i-..•"-""- .... .,.., .... .. '"" ..... ... . ., ... . ., ,. ' .. -- -· ...... ,.,.., ..... , ... 
• 1~" "'"" ,:.,..,.. o, ,., .. ., ,. ,., {lj\,f ,.., ...., ,,.. ··~ "" """ "'-""'-•~--· 11)111 ".., Ol,I .. '., ...... .. ... .. .... •• , ... ,..., ........ ,..,. ... ., .. ... 1 ., 
_,. 

'°'"' ..,., ..... .. ,., .... .. .. --- Ill•• ,.., 1t),il ""' "' '"' ...... ... . .. .. ,., ... ,., ,_, - . ..,. ... .. .... , '"" ...,. ..,,,, ,_ ..,. .. ., .. ,., ..,. .,_, 
i,....:,._...,,'Pt(. m• .... .,,. ..... ,. 

'"' ...... ... ,., .. 0..., .. . . .. ,_, - ...,. ... ., ..... '"" ..... ..,., 
t- .. '"" .. .. ..., 

~ ........ ,59-c. •n• "., "" "'"" 
,. 

'"" ....... ... .. ,., ... ,., - 1.1-..1 r1 01(~ m,. , ... ·~",,, .... ,_... 91td 
,..., .. '., ,,..,, .. ., --....- Uhl "_, ,,~ .. ,.,,,, .. -· ... . _, , .. ,., ... . .. _, _, .,... '"_, . .,.. ..,.., ,. ,~ 

'-• '"''' u..; 10.t "., .. ,., 
<- ,... " ., .. ... ,.., 11ml , .... .,. .... .... .., .,, .... ,,,.., _,. ...... "Ud.-...----1---1 

.... 

.... 

.... 

.. .. 

"" 

~~ffitn.ooa 
---..il~u.iao 

"" S-.. ...... 1'>-4 ,,..51.t.,.,.,. ........ J"• .,, •.. ...,, ... .,.,., .. ,.,.., ....... "' '"" """ 11,U.,.J """ ltjl:lp,l' 

""'r". ,.,. 
'"" ,.,,.,.ti •)10-l .,o, .. U1D•J ........ , ... ...... .. ...... ... .... Sl-ff•J ....... ,,,, J•• -ll))Aol q, J:}~ 41lk,ol .u ... , ....... , ... .,,.,,. 611U.i +&"1--: t1a.11 .. .. ..., ... : 

..... .... "" ,-t!U•d ...... "°'" .. .. ... ........ , ... ,UU$d .... , .... ,i • ,.,n,. ~1,t,) ... : 

11no1~- "' .... rnto.i ........ ,,,to .. .. ¥. ... , ....... "' '"" 
... ,.. 4591,-: _,,, u.~ ... , ...... .,, , .. ....... ,.,,., ...,, . 1,,1.,0•1 ... .,,. 

"' ""' ...,,. ~ ..... ....,. ""'"" ........ ... , ... a,19'111 ....... .... .. , .. ... J,1 .. 1 ... ,,.. "' """ 4itlttl ~:a-. ' .. 1.i.t1 •11111,) 
1....,r,,,.. ,.. f,Ql6'tfl ....... "°'"' .. M~•l ....... "' 

..,,, . tU1"'1 ....... IO.tl"'l' ...... '" -... """" .&'1111111 .... ,.. "' '°'~- SIUt-1 .010::.11 ..... , ....... ,.. .. . ... ... •161•.J ...... •1u ... 1 ... , .. '" 
, .. ... 10, ........ fJI.M'II .... ,., ..... ,.. ... ,,. •H1""'1 ...,,. •,!,."'1"'1 ... ,,.. .. tllt1.1'tl 101 •1 teit11,.i ,oul"': ~, .. .. .... u ~--- """"1 , • .m .. .a.., .. , ... ,,.. ..• '"" u ....... ~ni,.,, '14.lOII u.ti.1 

'IA<l l-'lltltt\llU,..,410'1..,U,,.GI 

..... . -......... u 
1a..9,_ia- ' ,...,_ 
1~•0,t,\ 
.. __ 
-·-...._.._..1...._.. -·-

1,~QOol 

11,'61'wYf(•AI a},o(Vli,t 

.....,. __ 

·- ~-,r•'f ._ ....... s-....,,..._., 
~,..,.~~ 

,...,-.,9'!:r< .. l'MIJo.t 

\,llt,Of~ +11oot1 

1-l-t• fllOO.I 
~ 

........ . .. 
"' 

....... . -., .... .. ... .,_ 
'" - -.... _,_, ......... _........, ___ ......._:i-.,._ 

·•,n,i.,_o-,t1,og~ """ .. -
..,.,.._-~.., .. "1"'-''"P! ~•••~~- ,.,_,•l'IXII 
~,-...,11. T_........,..A,r,,a.,t,J.o...li 

• 1n4,/ 

MGBA 
_,..~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

•- -~U•lfDl.m 

__, ... 



@==-= 
• --..,._ 

~,kty 
Schedule A 

Land Use 
~ol"'Ollcll9i~_,, 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

• ---· • fllJCIOffl-'lll\lLU --"""""'"""""' ....... """"" . .... , ... • ~lf.'if:LI 

-"""""' 
IOW""""'l 

• totOOl. &IHST!hffiOHAI. """"""'LMl> 

""""""""' 
• WIKl,lll(:111".AJIONA 

"""'""" 

• ::=Rim • ~=.. 
E) Mm• 





MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

I~ I 
0 EB 



m 
rn 

-

'fl·......l.j I I 

I • I 

L ______ J -

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

0 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

I ----e 
' ' j ' ' ' ' 

• \ ~---------- \, \ '------------------------- \ ~c---t------'< __ \_ ___________________________ ---



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

I -e 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' \ __________ \ \ c ________________________ \ ~c ----+-----__ \_ __________________________ _ j 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



0 



r---------------------------------------------------------------------7 
! e~~~ ~ ! 
~------------------------------------------------------------- ------
' \ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ &- \ 
\ 

\ 
\, 

\ 

\ 0 
&- '\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

A \ 
~ ', 

\ 
\, 

\ 
\ 

CJ 

• 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



<
t 

O
J 

,1 

u 
t! 1A 

2 ' 

i ~r 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

i i 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

! 
I 

! 
, , 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I I 
l 

l 
l 

l 
l 

I 
l 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

i I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I I 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

I 
I I I I I I I I 



<
t 

O
J 

,1 

u 
t! 1A 

2 ' 

i \i 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
, , 

I 
I 

I 

~
 I 

I 

I I , , 

I 
I 

I 
I 

D
 

! c:::::J ! c:::::J ! c:::::J ! 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 



MGBA 

- - -~ 

-~ 
----~ 

---~ 

--- ~ 

--- ~ 

--- ~ 

---~ 

--- ~ 

--- ~ 



<! 
co 

1! ,! 
~
 

lt 
1. 

L
 ' 

r u r r r r r ;,; 
l 

ii 
l 

r 
l 

1· 
l 

r 11 

~· -"=
 

,t 

I 

r
7

 

f 
l 

I =t 1:1111 
•! 

m
 -

I 

,• 
•· 

~ 

' 
j 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

DI DI DI DI DI DI 

D 



~-~-------~-----------------• 
I 
I 
·-----~ .-----• 
I 

~ ----- • 

I 

----- • 

----- • 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

-- -- -7 -- -- -~ 

I 
~ ~ ---1 --- ~ 

~ -----~ 

I 
I ............... ~-... -,-----~ 

............... ....-i-.... - -1 -----~ 
I 

............... ....-i-.. - ---+ -----~ 
I 

................ ~-... -- --+ -----~ 
I 
----- ~ 

----- ~ 



---------- -~ 

I 
I -+ -- -~ 

------. -----~ 
I 

---1 -----~ 
I 

J- -----~ 
I 

_l _____ ~ 

I 
-+ -----~ 
I 
----- ~ 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



<
t 

O
J 

,1 

u 
t! 1A 

2 ' 

i 
1J 

i 
i 

i 
I 

I 
I 

-·-
__

_ J ___ _l ___ _l _
_

 _ i 
i 

i 
i 

1. I iliil 
I 

I 
1 V: 

~
 

-
j
-
-

M
I 

1 
f -

· 
·-

~
J-·-·1-

·-
-

I 
I 

I
-
•
-
•
 

11 
I 

I 

I 
I 

ii 



-,-- - - - - - - - - - - - - -r- ------- -, ---
1 

I _ ______. __ _ -, ---
1 

~~ ..... --.i~-w. .... w....-~W-- -7 ---
1 

~~ ............... .i.....a,i....,ij....,~W~~- ~ ---

1 
-7 ---

1 

-7 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



<
t 

O
J 

,1 

u 
t! 1A 

2 ' 

i 
1i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

i 
I 

I I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
•
-
•
-

~
~

•
-
•
.
l
,
.
.
_

•
-
•
 

I 
•
-
•

I 
•
-
•

I-
• 

I 
I I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

-



__ ,. 

--.. 

'""""' ., .... ,. 
"'""" 

__ ..__ 

-
--.... TIIIIQCall ---

·----

ADAPTABLE DESIGN GUIDELINES 

DESIGN ELEMENTS 

cq_,.....,,,_z..-,....,.,1..._-.,PIO,._..,._,.. JOit,..., m1.~•·• 
LEVEL.ONE LEVEL lWO LEVEL THREE 

:---:.·----- -~---------...,,..... ... _..,._ 
.......... ,~-Y• ,,...., ........ _....,..,.., -· ....... -~ ............ --. ==--==------___ .,..,... __ _ 

~--........ -~a., 1----------.-·------.... _,. .... .._,. .. _ _,,....,__, __ _, 

~;:~::::---., -- -

-.·.!' 

---..... ,......--... .......... ,_...,. .. ~-l'• ,,°""" .... _....,. .... -· ...... .,.,-.c-.----. .. -•"5--.-..--....,._1111 ___ __ ~-...------~ 
••'"---....... ~a-.. ---------_________ .., __ _ 
------..-.---.....------.. 
~=:~.!~~-.. -- -

-~-

.......... ,~ ....... ,--.i,, ............... ., , ~ ................. 

----.------· ":'!:--"' _____ ,,,,_..,... 

·--·. ·------- ·---·----____ ....,__ -------~,-,~ ~-~fir----- -..-~-=-.,--
~ -GD':9---~---- __ _ .... .....,_.._..7 ,r.,.....,....,. :"""...,__..,.,._W'• ~-- . ...-. :;-""-- ,.._ 

:~::-~- - ---.... a.-_ .. 

--"·---- --w---..... -~~------- _ .. ...,. _ _,.. __ -~-,~----7-C -~~-• .. -

.'~~----•-t-:1'•··- !~~~--..... --_____ ...,_ ~-..._ ___ ..., 
1'•"---_,. ... ..,,.,...... .. ;..., _ _,,.Mi....,.. ..... 
.:;;;:; ~---WI!'_~. - . ~---i.-., .... ___ ,__ __ .,_ 

.......,..,.... .............. , .. ~.,.,0,,0..,, .............. , ... ~---•• l.,._ __ ___ 

----

.. _... --· 

ADAPTABLE DESIGN GUIDELINES 

FIXTURES AND FINISHES 

LEVELOHE LEVEL TWO 

LEVEL ONE 

-==:::-..:--:..=:=-_._, __ 
_...., _____ _ -

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 

LEVEL THREE 



MGBA 







::: 
JOno ,.,.. 

r--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------7 
' I 

' \ 
'. 

\ 

.... .... 
== ..... 
""" 
.. ,. . .... 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

...... J.M 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\, 

....... ,... ,. .. ·-- ~ ~ 
=~= ::: .~: •n.. ,u.. r1.J111 • ... c:±::J ~ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\, 

\ 
\ ... ...: 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



r---------------------------------------------------------------------7 
I I 

I I 
I I 

~---------------------------------------------------------------------7 
l i 
\ i 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\, 

\ 
\ 
' \ 

\ 
\ 

' \ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
' \ 

\ 
\ I 

\ ~----~ ~-----~ I \ ______________________________________ _J 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



,---------------------------------, 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
' \ 

' 

D 
D .. 

I 

I 

__ _J 

,---------------------------------, 
I I 

t-----------------------------------1 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

D 

"" -Cl 

\ __________________ _J 

,---------------------------------, 

' \ 
' \ 

' 

D 
D 

D 
D 
D 
[:a 

I 

I 

__ _J 

,---------------------------------, 
I I 

t-----------------------------------1 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
\ 
' \ 

' \ 
\ 
' \ 

' \ 
\ 

D 
c=i -D 

\ __________________ _J 

,---------------------------------, 

\ 
' \ 

' \ 
' 

\ 
' 

\ 
' 

\ 

D 
D -[!J 
c::, 

\ __________________ _J 

,---------------------------------, 
I I 

t-----------------------------------1 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
' \ 

\ 
' \ 

\ __________________ _J 

MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 



MGBA 
_,.~ 
g,~-...... 



MGBA 



UP

DNUP

DN

DESTRIAN PATH

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

25.0224.19

22.53

21.01

20.18

25.53

3.7%

4.9%

25.53

25.53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 26.60 TOW 26.60

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98 TOW 26.60

TOW 26.60

TOW 26.60

TOW 26.60

TOW 26.60

TOW 26.60T

TOW

6.6

25 53 3325 5325 53

9

T

%

B
L5

A
L5

D
L5

C
L5

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL
PER TREE)

1m

2m

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL

PER TREE)
SEE DETAILS

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVECOVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE
COVERED ABOVE

BENCH

SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR BICYCLE PATH

AND CURBS

ASPHALT INFILL BETWEEN CONCRETE PAVING IN ALLEY (TYP)

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CONCRETE PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SURFACE
ON VOID FORM AT TOP OF STAIRS

PARAPET AND
GUARD RAIL

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PLANTING (TYP)

PLANTING (TYP)

PL
A

NT
IN

G 
(T

YP
)

PLANTING (TYP)

SIDEWALK

EXHAUST

STRUCTURAL SLAB WITH TRAFFIC COATING (TYP)
STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

BIKE RACK (SEE IMAGE THIS PAGE
AND DETAIL ON L6 DETAILS)

PATIO

22.53

21

20.18

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

C
L55

ore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVECOVERED ABOVE

D ABOVE

BENCH

SEE CIVIL DRAWINGSC
FOR BICYCLE PATHR 

AND CURBS

ASPHALT INFILL BETWEEN CONCRETE PAVING IN ALLEY (TYP)

NATURAL COLOUR TEXADA SLAB PAVERS 

PREFABRICATED CUSTOM ALUMINUM 
PLANTERS FROM GREEN THEORY

LANDSCAPE
PLAN - LEVEL 1

L1

URBAN RACKS STANDARD 
INVERTED U WITH CENTRE 
FLAT BAR

DN

SECURITY 
GATE

SECURITY 
GATE

Attachment 3

\ 
\ 

I 



UP

DNUP

DN

DESTRIAN PATH

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

25.0224.19

22.53

21.01

20.18

25.53

3.7%

4.9%

25.53

25.53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL
PER TREE)

1m

2m

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL

PER TREE)
SEE DETAILS

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVECOVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE
COVERED ABOVE

BENCH

SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR BICYCLE PATH

AND CURBS

ASPHALT INFILL BETWEEN CONCRETE PAVING IN ALLEY (TYP)

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CONCRETE PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SURFACE
ON VOID FORM AT TOP OF STAIRS

PARAPET AND
GUARD RAIL

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PLANTING (TYP)

PLANTING (TYP)

PL
A

NT
IN

G 
(T

YP
)

PLANTING (TYP)

SIDEWALK

EXHAUST

STRUCTURAL SLAB WITH TRAFFIC COATING (TYP)
STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

BIKE RACK (SEE IMAGE THIS PAGE
AND DETAIL ON L6 DETAILS)

PATIO

B
L5

A
L5

D
L5

C
L5

ATH

UP

DNNUP

DN

25.0224.19

21.01

25.53

%%%%%3.7%

4.9

25.53

25.53
25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

Fraxiunus 'Patmoreusnu

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL
PER TREE)

1m

2m

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE
ECOVERED ABOVE

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CONCRETE PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SURFACE
ON VOID FORM AT TOP OF STAIRS

PARAPET AND
GUARD RAIL

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PLANTING (TYP)

PLANTING (TYP)

PL
A

NT
IN

G 
(T

YP
)

PLANTING (TYP)

SIDEWALK

EXHAUST

STRUCTURAL SLAB WITH TRAFFIC COATING (TYP)
STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

BIKE RACK (SEE IMAGE THIS PAGE
AND DETAIL ON L6 DETAILS)

PATIO

9%

T

%%%

TOW 25.98

T

TOW

P

5.9

25 53 3325 5325 53

9

T

%

I

T

B
L5

A
5L55

STANDARD MATERIALS ON FORBES AVENUE SIDEWALK

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

2 X ROOT BALL WIDTH

SHRUB

SCALE 1 : 10

LANDSCAPE
PLAN - PARKING

L2

1
3

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

0.M • OJrffll MJ<D -'C4, ,QUM I. 1000 

FURNISHINGS 

-----. -- . --

:ll!iii West :llrd. Si. 
Mi«lrise 191eside11iial 

LANDSCAPE: 
PlAN " PAFIIKI N\G 

__j 



UP

DNUP

DN

DESTRIAN PATH

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

25.0224.19

22.53

21.01

20.18

25.53

3.7%

4.9%

25.53

25.53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

UP

DNNUP

DN

25.0224.19

22.53

21.01

20.18

25.53

%%%%%3.7%

%%
4.9%

25.53

25.53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

La RhLp Lp Lp Lp La La La Rh Rh Rh La RhLp Lp Lp Lp La La La Rh Rh Rh

La

Rh

Lp Lp Lp

Lp

La

La

La

Rh
Rh
Rh

La

Lp

La

Lp

Lp

Lp

La

Rh

La
La

La

Rh
Rh

Rh

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

2'-0"

(0.61 m)

2'
-0

"

(0
.6

1 
m

)

2'-0"

(0.61 m)

DN

DN

EXIT

EXIT

ELEVATOR 
MACHINE 

ROOM

V
ES

TI
BU

LE

STORAGE

WEATHER 
PROTECTION 

ABOVE

EL
EV

.
EL

EV
.

MECH
SHAFTSTAIR 

2

STAIR 
1

KIDS CLIMBING WALL

BENCH
& TREE

PLANTING

PL
A

NT
IN

G

RAISED PLANTER

OUTDOOR 
KITCHEN

SEATING AREA

GARDEN

LIGHT 
BOLLARD

POTTING 
TABLE

BENCH
& TREE

SUN 
PROTECTION, 
TYP

BB
Q

BB
Q

MECH UNIT
CHILLER

COOLING 
TOWER RTU SCREEN

BENCH
& TREE

KID'S PLAY AREA

PLAY SURFACE

KIDS CLIMBING WALL

KID'S PLAY AREA

TENSILE SHADING 

KIDS PLAYHOUSE

(1.067 m)

3'-6"

(0.914 m)

3'-0"

(1
.0

67
 m

)

3'
-6

"

GEOPLEX© CLIMBING WALL 
(AGES 5-12

ROBINIA VILLAGE 
VILLAGE PLAYHOUSE 

(AGES 2-5)

PLAY EQUIPMENT

PAVING MATERIALS

RAISED WOOD PLANTERS WITH BENCHES
NATURAL COLOUR TEXADA SLAB PAVERS

CUSTOM WHITE 2' WIDE 2' TALL ALUMINUM PLANTERS OUTSIDE OF RAILING

LANDSCAPE
PLAN - ROOF

L3

, . • • • ---· • • .. -

• 

,. 

:ll!iii West :llrd. Si. 
Mi«lrise 191eside11iial 

l.ANDl§C/o\PE: 
PlAN~ l"dOOf 

l3 4 
__j 



Planting Plan

Sym Qty Botanical Name Common Name

Trees

Acc 2 Acer japonicum Green Japanese Maple

3 Fraxiunus Pennsylvanica ‘Patmore’ Patmore Green Ash

3 Gleditsia triacanthos ‘Imperial’ Imperial Honey Locust

2 Gymnocladus dioicus Kentucky Co eetree

3 Pseudotsuga menzeisii Douglas Fir

2 Ulmus Americana American Elm

Shrubs

Aw 35 Azalea 'Gumpo White' Gumpo White Azalea

De 20 Dicentra formosa Paci c Bleeding Heart

Hs 26 Hosta Sieboldii Plantain Lily

Hym 5 Hydrangea macrophyla Big Leaf Hydrangea

Lp 121 Lonicera pileata Honeysuckle

Pm 52 Polystichum munitum Western Sword Fern

Amy 16 Rosa meidiland Yellow Yellow Meidiland Rose

Grassess

Ac 492 Achnatherum calamagrostis ‘Lemperg’ Lemperg Spear Grass

Caa 41 Calamagrostis x acuti ora  ‘Karl Foerster’ Feather Reed Grass

Cm 254 Carex morrowii ‘Ice Dance’ Ice Dance 

Fo 227 Festuca ovina “Elijiah Blue” Elijah Blue Blue Fescue

Perennialsials

At 34 Anemone tomentosa 'Robustis Anenome tomentosa Robustiss

An 12 Aster novi-belgii New York Aster

La 185 Lavandula angustifolia ‘Nana' Dwarf Lavender

Mf 12 Monarda stulosa Wild Bergamont

Rh 171 Rudbeckia hirta ‘Goldstrum’ Goldstrum Black Eyed Susan

All work to CSLA/CNTA Standards

UP

DNUP

DN

DESTRIAN PATH

B
L5

A
L5

D
L5

C
L5

DN

SECURITY 
GATE

SECURITY 
GATE

Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo
Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

FoFo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo Fo
Fo Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo Fo
Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo FoFo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo
Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo Fo

Fo Fo
Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo Fo Fo
Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Cm
Cm

CmCm
CmCm CmCm CmCm Cm Cm

Cm
Cm

CmCm
CmCmCmCmCmCmCmCm

Cm
CmCm

Cm
CmCmCmCmCmCmCm

CmCm Cm
CmCmCmCmCmCmCm

Cm
Cm Cm

CmCmCmCmCmCmCm

Cm
Cm

Cm

Cm
CmCmCmCmCmCm

CmCm
Cm

Cm
Cm

CmCmCmCm

CmCmCm
Cm

Cm
CmCm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

CmCmCmCmCm
CmCm

Cm

CmCm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm
Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Cm Cm Cm
Cm Cm

Cm Cm

CmCmCmCm
Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm
Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm
CmCm

Cm Cm Cm

Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa Caa
Caa

Caa
Caa

Caa
Caa

Caa
Caa

Caa

La
La

La
La

La
La

La
La La

La
La

La
La

La
La La

La
La

La

La
La

La
La La La La La La La La La La La

La La La La La La La La La La

Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh Rh

LaLaLa

FoFo

Fo

RhRhRh

Cm
Cm

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

AcAc
Ac

Ac
Ac

AcAcAcAc

AcAcAcAcAcAcAcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAc
Ac

Ac Ac Ac AcAc

Ac Ac Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

AcAcAc
AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAcAc
AcAcAc

AcAc

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac Ac
Ac

Ac
AcAcAc

AcAc
Ac
Ac Ac

AcAc

Ac

Ac
Ac Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm Pm

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo
Fo Fo Fo

Fo

Fo

Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm

CmCmCmCmCmCmCm
Cm
CmCmCmCmCmCmCmCm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Fo
Cm

CmCm CmCmCm
Cm CmCm

Cm

Cm

Cm
Cm

CmCm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac Ac

Ac
Ac Ac AcAc

Ac Ac Ac Ac Ac
Ac Ac Ac Ac

Ac

Ac Ac Ac

Ac
Ac Ac

Ac

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La La
Rh
Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
RhRh Rh

RhRhRh
Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
RhRh Rh

RhRh Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
RhRh Rh

RhRh Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh Rh

RhRh Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
RhRh Rh

RhRh
La La La La La La La La La La La La La La

RhRhRh
RhRh Rh

RhRhRh
RhRh Rh

RhRhRh

RhRh Rh

Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp

Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp

Lp
Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp

Lp

Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp Lp LpLpLp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

LpLp
Lp

Lp
LpLpLp LpLpLp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

Lp

La
La

La
La

La
La

La
La

La
La

La
La

AtAtAtAtAtAtAtAtAt
AtAt

At At At At At At At
Lp Lp Lp

Lp Lp Lp

At At
Lp Lp

Lp Lp

At At
AwAwAwAwAwAwAwAwAw

AwAwAwAwAwAwAwAwAw

Aw

Lp Lp

Aw Aw

AwAwAwAwAwAwAwAwAw

Aw
Aw

Aw
Aw

Aw

Rmy

Rmy
Rmy

Rmy Rmy

Rmy

Rmy
Rmy Rmy Rmy Rmy

Rmy
Rmy RmyRmy

Rmy
AtAtAtAt

At
At

AtAtAtAtAt
At

Acj AcjPsmPsm Psm

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH

TxmH
TxmH

TxmH
TxmH

TxmH
TxmH

TxmH

TxmHTxmHTxmHTxmHTxmH

TxmHTxmHTxmHTxmHTxmH

TxmHTxmHTxmHTxmHTxmH

TxmHTxmHTxmHTxmHTxmH

Pm Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm
Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Hs

De De
De De

De

HsHs Hs

DeDe De
De
De

Hym

Hym

DeDe De

De
De

HsHs Hs

Hym

Hym

Hym

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs
Hs

PmPmPmPm

PmPmPmPm

PmPmPmPm

PmPmPmPm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

Ac
AcAc

Caa
Caa

Ac
AcAc

Mf
Mf

Mf
Mf

Mf
Mf

Mf
Mf

Caa
Caa Ac

AcAc Ac
AcAc Ac

AcAc Ac
AcAc

An
An

An
An

An
An

An

Ac Ac Ac

Ac

AcAc

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp

Rh
RhRh La

LaLa
La

La

Ac
AcAc Ac

AcAc

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

FoFo

Fo

Ac
Ac

Ac

La
La

La
RhRh

Rh
Rh

Mf
Mf

Mf

Mf

An
AnLp

Lp
Lp

Lp

Lp
Lp

Lp
Lp An

An
An

Caa
Caa

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac AcAc

Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac

Ac Ac Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

AcAc Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac AcAc
Ac AcAc

Ac
Ac

AcAc Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
AcAc Ac

AcAc Ac
AcAc Ac

AcAc Ac
AcAc Ac

AcAc

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac

La

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Ac
Ac

Ac

AcAc

Ac
Ac

Ac

Ac

Ac

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Caa

Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

La

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh
Rh

Rh

La
La

La
La

La
La

La

La
La

La

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Fo

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
Cm

Cm
CmCm Fo La Rh

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

PLANTING PLAN

LpLpLp

LpLpLp

Rh Rh Rh
Rh Rh Rh

Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo

Fo Fo Fo Fo

Rh Rh Rh Rh

Lp

Lp

Lp

MfMfMf
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac
Ac

Ac

L4

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
----·-- • --

:ll!iii West :llrd. Si. 
Mi«lrise 191eside11iial 

l4 4 
__j 



SLAB

ALLEY

PATIO

AMENITY

PATIO

STAIRS

FENCE

HANDRAILALUMINUM 
PLANTERGRAVEL

DRAINAGE HOLES

PL

PL

PL

PL

SOIL- NOTE
SEE DETAIL FOR 
STRUCTURAL 
SOILS

SIDEWALK
SOIL- NOTE
SEE DETAIL FOR 
STRUCTURAL 
SOILS

SOIL- NOTE
SEE DETAIL FOR 
STRUCTURAL 
SOILS

SIDEWALK

EXPOSED
AGGREGATE

BIKE PATH
SEE ENGINEERS
PLANS FOR 
INFORMATION

CURB
SEE ENGINEERS
PLANS FOR 
INFORMATION

ASPHALT

SECTION A
L1

1/4" = 1'-0"

SECTION B
L1

1/4" = 1'-0"

SECTION D
L2

1/4" = 1'-0" SECTION C
L2

1/4" = 1'-0"

24.19
24.10

25.53

21.50

20.30

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO
PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PRIVACY 
SCREEN

PRIVACY 
SCREEN

PRIVACY 
SCREEN

SEE ARCHITECTURAL
DRAWINGS FOR
SECTIONS THROUGH
BUILDINGS, ALL
BUILDING SECTIONS
ON LANDSCAPE
DRAWINGS ARE
ILLUSTRATIVE

SEE ARCHITECTURAL
DRAWINGS FOR
SECTIONS THROUGH
BUILDINGS, ALL
BUILDING SECTIONS
ON LANDSCAPE
DRAWINGS ARE
ILLUSTRATIVE

TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

SECTIONS

L5

REFUSE
STAGING
AREA



CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER MARINE 
DRIVE DESIGN GUIDELINES
EXPOSED AGGREGATE AND BROOM 
FINISH CONCRETE DETAILS

STRUCTURAL SOIL DETAIL
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER MARINE DRIVE DESIGN GUIDELINES

BENCH DETAIL
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER MARINE DRIVE DESIGN GUIDELINES

ALUMINUM PLANTER DETAIL

34
"

24"

w
w

w
.u

rb
an

ra
ck

s.
co

m
1-

88
8-

71
7-

88
81

B
ic

yc
le

 P
ar

ki
ng

 S
ys

te
m

s
U

R
B

A
N

 R
A

C
K

S
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

by

1/2"

4 
1/

2"

2-%%C9/16" 

%%C2 3/8"

BIKE RACK DETAIL
SCALE NTS

TO BE BOLTED TO
CONCRETE PAD

AS PER MANUFACTURERS
SPECIFICATIONS

BIKE RACK DETAILS

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

DETAILS

L6

Pot!otaced PVC~ will\ 
romovablo ~ for deanout; ~ 
~innQ1rwovenl1i.Qf 

CoSlom melll ?Janler, COkM" to 
maleh archrlecture 
Grovmg modi,m · Sol 
dtplh -.,l'ialely 3( 
Drainage Gravtl 
Fo, finish. totO' to plalll 
Melel planlOf D)l10ffl 
Oralrwnat cJw llter l(lbo 
and root bar,._ secuter 
wflh lhc dralnrral 
Buildup P8f at(hitect 

~,------==~-' 

... ._ ......... llfl ........ . ~ .....,.._.,, '°'_...,. ""I-- ·---... ...-.-...-.. 
•lr~""'I•' t-----~-... ------•~1-=--..-,, ........ -_,_.c._ 

-·c±l 

0 

1l'!Jl ~ii; IDm 1l1filQ) ro 
~mE'IJlE~&O 

N1i ~ i'.11ffe,IM(!J[Fffe,~ 
~I~~~$ 

J 

:ll!iii West :llrd. Si. 
Mi«lrise 191eside11iial 

DH/i\llS 

__j 



UP

DNUP

DN

DESTRIAN PATH

WEATHER PROTECTION

 SHORT-TERM
BIKE PARKING

EXISTING FIRE 
HYDRANT

BENCHBENCH

SIGNAL CONTROL 
BOX- REFER TO 
ELECTRICAL

 SHORT-TERM
BIKE PARKING

MAIN ENTRY

M
A

IL
B

O
X

E
S

FI
R

E
 F

IG
H

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

TR
O

LS

LEGEND

1406 Clyde Ave., 
West Vancouver, B.C.
Canada  V7T 1G1
PH:922-1885   
FAX:922-5485

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

of ce@vaughanplanning.com

Vaughan
Landscape Planning

and Design

DESIGNED

SCALE

DATE

REVDRAWING NO.

THIS REVISION SUPERCEDES DRAWINGS
BEARING PREVIOUS REVISION NUMBER

TITLE

MCV

Mar 14,2022

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUEDDATE

351 West 3rd. St.
Midrise Residential

North Vancouver, BC

1/8" = 1'-0"

4

1 Apr 01, 2023 RESPONSE TO CITY COMMENTS

2 Apr 26, 2023 REVISED BASED ON CIVIL UPDATE

3 Jun 12, 2023 REVISED BASED CITY COMMENTS

4 Sept 12, 2023 REVISED FOR RESUBMISSION

25.0224.19

22.53

21.01

20.18

25.53

3.7%

4.9%

25.53

25.53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25.53 25.53
TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL
PER TREE)

1m

2m

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL

PER TREE)
SEE DETAILS

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVECOVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE
COVERED ABOVE

BENCH

SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR BICYCLE PATH

AND CURBS

ASPHALT INFILL BETWEEN CONCRETE PAVING IN ALLEY (TYP)

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CONCRETE PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SURFACE
ON VOID FORM AT TOP OF STAIRS

PARAPET AND
GUARD RAIL

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PLANTING (TYP)

PLANTING (TYP)

PL
A

NT
IN

G 
(T

YP
)

PLANTING (TYP)

SIDEWALK

EXHAUST

STRUCTURAL SLAB WITH TRAFFIC COATING (TYP)
STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

STRUCTURAL SLAB
WITH TRAFFIC 
COATING (TYP)

BIKE RACK (SEE IMAGE THIS PAGE
AND DETAIL ON L6 DETAILS)

PATIO

2'-0"

(0.61 m)

2'
-0

"

(0
.6

1 
m

)

2'-0"

(0.61 m)

DN

DN

EXIT

EXIT

ELEVATOR 
MACHINE 

ROOM

V
ES

TI
BU

LE

STORAGE

WEATHER 
PROTECTION 

ABOVE

EL
EV

.
EL

EV
.

MECH
SHAFTSTAIR 

2

STAIR 
1

KIDS CLIMBING WALL

BENCH
& TREE

PLANTING

PL
A

NT
IN

G

RAISED PLANTER

OUTDOOR 
KITCHEN

SEATING AREA

GARDEN

LIGHT 
BOLLARD

POTTING 
TABLE

BENCH
& TREE

SUN 
PROTECTION, 
TYP

BB
Q

BB
Q

MECH UNIT
CHILLER

COOLING 
TOWER RTU SCREEN

BENCH
& TREE

KID'S PLAY AREA

PLAY SURFACE

KIDS CLIMBING WALL

KID'S PLAY AREA

TENSILE SHADING 

KIDS PLAYHOUSE

(1.067 m)

3'-6"

(0.914 m)

3'-0"

(1
.0

67
 m

)

3'
-6

"

TH

RE
TRICAL

EXISTI

WEA HER PROTECTIONC IONATHE

CO
REFER

CAL

TR
R TO

T

GNAL C
X- RE

ON
ER
AL

NT
R

TROL 
O

ECTLECT

SIG
BOX- 

LEC

ROL

EL
B
EL

TI
YDR NTH

BENCH

TI
H

RE 
T

T G FIR
YDRANTH DRANRANT

BENCH ENCHEBBBBEBBBENCHB

NININGTING RRNG F EREEEEFI
YDHHYHH

25.0224.19

22.53

21.0

20.18

%%%%%3.7%

%%
4.9%

25 53

20.20 20.20 20.40 20.40
20.59 20.80

20.97

25.3325.28

23.42

23.37

24.10 25.18
25.53TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98TOW 25.98

25 53 25 53
TOW 25.98 TOW 25.98

TOW 25.98

Fraxiunus 'Patmoreusnu

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

Fraxiunus 'Patmore

Gleditsia 'Imperial'

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURAL
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL
PER TREE)

1m

2m

OUTLINE OF STRUCTURALIN
SOIL BELOW (25 cu m OF SOIL(

PER TREE)
SEE DETAILS

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVECOVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

COVERED ABOVE

BENCH

SEE CIVIL DRAWINGSC
FOR BICYCLE PATHR 

AND CURBS

ASPHALT INFILL BETWEEN CONCRETE PAVING IN ALLEY (TYP)

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CUSTOM ALUMINUM PLANTER PLACED ON SLAB
2' - 0" HEIGHT

CONCRETE PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SURFACE
ON VOID FORM AT TOP OF STAIRS

PARAPET AND
GUARD RAIL

PATIO

IO

TIO

PLANTING (TYP)

PLANTING (TYP)

PL
A

NT
IN

G 
(T

YP
)

PLANTING (TYP)

SID

EXHAUST

STRUCTURAL SLAB WITH TRAFFIC COATING (TYP)

RMMR
NGG

TERERTE
INN

25.5325.53 25.53

A

A

01

TO

TO

 SHO
BIKE PE

TOW 25.98

98

98

TOW 2

PA

PA

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO
GINGGGGNGGNGN

MORT-TERMRMM
PARKIN

RMHORT TERR RMMMM
GNGGGPARKIRPARKI

AT

AT

98OW 25.952WOWTOW 25.

.9OW 25.952WOWTO 25.

T

2'-0"

(0.61 m)

(0.61 m)

2'
-

2'-0"

)0.61 m)

DN

DN

EXITEXITX T

EXITEXITE I

ELEVATOR 
MACHINE 

ROOM

V
ES

TI
BU

LE

STORAGE

WEATH
PROTECTION

ABOVE

EL
EV

.
EL

EV
.

MECHCHME
SHAFTSHAFTSTAIR 

2

STAIR 
1

ALLLLLBING WALKIDS CLIMBI G WALLW LLIMBINNG WLLIMBING WALL

PLANTING

PL
A

NT
IN

G

RAISED PLANTERA L T

DOORDOORO ROUTDOUTDO TD
CHENCHENHKITCKITCTC

SEATING AREAE T G A

GARDENGARDENG R N

LIGI
BOLLARDBOLLARDO A

POTTING 
TABLE

BENCHN H
& TREE& TREET E

N

BB
Q

BB
Q

MECH UNIT
CHILLER

COOLING 
TOWER RTU SCREEN

BENCHB C
& TREE& TREE& R

KID'S PLAY AREA

PLAY SURFACE

KIDS CLIMBING WALLC M G W LLK L

KID'S PLAY AREAY PP

E SHADING S D GETENSILEE LEE

KIDS PLAYHOUSEK A O E

AREA

1.067 m)1 6 m1 )m1((1

3'-6"3' 6"-

m))))m)0.914 m9 40(0 m)m000

3'-0"3' 0"3 0

(1
.0

67
 m

)
6

(1
.0

67
mmmm

3'
-6

"
-

3'
6"

2'
-0

"

(
)

(0
.6

1 
m

)

SUN SUNN
PROTECTION, ,O C O
TYPP

25.53

HER 
ON

BENCHBENCHE H
& TREEEE

((0.6

IGHT I T
RDD

TEHORT-TT T
BIKE PARK
 SHO
BBIKE PARKKIKIN

TOW 25

SIDEWALK LIGHTING
SEE ENGINEERS DRAWINGS

3
DEWALK

T

SIDEWALK LIGHTING
SEE ENGINEERS DRAWINGS

SIDEWALK LIGHTING
SEE ENGINEERS DRAWINGS

BOLLARDS ON ROOFTOP

LIGHTING IN WALL AT BIKE RACKS

LIGHTING PLAN

L7

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

:ll!iii West :llrd. Si. 
Mi«lrise 191eside11iial 

l7 4 
__j 



 
Table 1. Summary of Proposed Zoning Changes 



 
Table 2. Proposed Vehicle and Bicycle Parking 

Note, the total parking provided is equivalent to 28 
spaces with the inclusion of the 1 car share space.  

Note:  
o 16 of the 97 secure spaces have been 

provided for larger cargo bikes. 
 

Lot Coverage 



Boundary Setbacks 

 
Building Width and Length 

 
Vehicle Parking Spaces 



o
o

 
 



~1,ty 
vancouver 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 

CITY O F N O RTH VANCOUVER 

141 WEST 14TH STR EET 

N O RTH VANCO UVER 

BC /CA NADA/ V7M 1 H9 

T 604 985 776 1 

F 604 985 9417 

IN FO@C NV.O RG 

CNV.ORG 





S:lt' 
vancouver 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 

CITY O F NORTH VANCOUVER 

141 WEST 14TH STR EE T 

NORTH VANCOUVER 

BC / CANADA I V7M 1 H9 

T 604 985 7761 

F 604 985 94 17 

IN FO @CNV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 



~Ity 
vancouver 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

141 W EST 14 TH STREET 

NORTH VANCOUVER 

BC / CANADA/ V7M 1 H9 

T 604 985 7761 

F 6049859417 

INFO@CNV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 



•

•
•



•

•
•





•
•











 

141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG   

Proposal:  To rezone the subject property from 
a Service Station Commercial (CS-2) Zone to a 
new Comprehensive Development 763 (CD-763) 
Zone, to permit the development of a 5-storey 
rental residential building consisting of 53 units, 
6 of which would be mid-market rental units.
Provide written input:  All persons who believe 

opportunity to be heard by written or email 
submission.  All submissions must include your 
name and address and should be sent to the 

no 
later than noon on Monday, February 12, 2024, to ensure their availability to 
Council at the meeting.  No Public Hearing will be held.
Watch the meeting online at cnv.org/LiveStreaming or in person at City 

th th Street after 5:30pm.
View the documents
Questions?

32
5

310

308

36
3

309

32
1

212

34
7

34
1

36
9

35
7

340

32
9

32
1

32
6

32
1

33
3

33
9

3

351

41

308

32
0

330

375

31
7

327

Squamish
Nation

Fo
rb

es
 A

ve

M
ah

on
 A

ve

W 3rd St

W 4th St351 W 3rd St

PUBLIC NOTICE
Regular Council Meeting

Monday, February 12, 2024 at 6:00pm
First Reading of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 9004”

and “Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 9005”
351 West 3rd Street

S:l!Y 
vancouver 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004 Document: 2441535-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9004 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd 
Street, CD-763). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 351 West 
3rd Street and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and forming 
part of CD-763 (Comprehensive Development 763 Zone): 

 

PID: 007-960-255 LOT 1 BLOCK 136 DISTRICT LOT 271 PLAN 13998 

 
from zone CS-2. 

 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following Comprehensive Development  Zone to Section 1101 in numerical 
order:  

 
CD-763 Comprehensive Development 763 Zone (351 West 3rd Street) 

 
In the CD-763 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RM-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) “Basement” means the floor levels, located below the First Storey; 
 
(2) One Principal Building shall be permitted on one Lot; 

 
(3) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use: 

i. Accessory Home Occupation Use, subject to Sections 507(6), (7) and 
(8) of this Bylaw; 

ii. Accessory Off-Street Parking Use; 
iii. Accessory Home Office Use; 

 
 (4) Gross Floor Area: 

 
(a) Combined and in total, shall not exceed 1.6 times the original lot area of 

1,396m2; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004 Document: 2441535-v1 

(b) Maximum Gross Floor Area may be further increased to a maximum of 2.6 
times the original lot area of 1,396m2, upon entering into a Housing 
Agreement with the City: 

 
BASE DENSITY 

OCP Schedule ‘A’ 1.6 FSR 

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 

ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 

CATEGORY 
DESCRIPTION 

ADDITIONAL 
(BONUS) 
DENSITY 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Secured Rental 
Housing 

100% rental 
housing; 10% 
mid-market 
rental units 

1.0 FSR OCP section 
2.2 

 

TOTAL DENSITY 2.6 FSR 

 
(5) Lot Coverage of Principal Building shall not exceed a maximum of 67 percent of 

the original lot area of 1,396m2; 
 

(6) Height: 
 

(a) Height of Principal Building shall not exceed five storeys and 18 metres (59 
feet) as measured from average building grade of the new northern 
property boundary following road dedication (being 24.35 metres); 
 

(7) Height Exceptions: 
 

(a) The Heights of Buildings and Structures permitted elsewhere in the Bylaw 
may be exceeded for: 
i. parapet walls, guard rails, Garden Structures, common staircase and 

elevator structures by not more than 4.0 metres (13.13 feet); 
ii. Fully screened mechanical equipment, sited at least 7.5 metres (24.6 

feet.) from the property boundary, by not more than 2 metres (6.6 
feet); 

 
(8) Siting: 
 

(a) Principal Building shall be sited in accordance with the following: 
i.  from the Front Lot Line (northern property boundary), being from the 

new property boundary following road dedication: 
1.  No less than 0 metres to the basement levels;  
2.  No less than 2.1 metres (6.9 feet) to upper level walls;  
3. No less than 0.3 metres (1.0 feet) to an unenclosed balcony;  

ii. from the Rear Lot Line (southern boundary): 
1.  No less than 0 metres the basement levels; 
2. No less than 3.0 metres (9.8 feet) to the upper level walls; 
3. No less than 1.2 metres (4.2 feet) to an unenclosed balcony; 

iii. from the Exterior Side Lot Line (western boundary): 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9004 Document: 2441535-v1 

1. No less than 2.5 metres (8.2 feet) to the basement levels; 
2. No less than 5.2 metres (17.1 feet) to the upper level walls;  
3. No less than 3.1 metres (10.2 feet) to an unenclosed balcony; 

iv. from the Interior Side Lot Line (eastern boundary): 
1. Not less than 0 metres to the basement levels; 
2. Not less than 4.0 metres (13.1 feet) to the upper level walls;  
3. Not less than 2.3 metres (7.5 feet) to an unenclosed balcony; 

 
(b) Section 410(3) “Siting Exceptions” is varied as follows: 

i Where eaves project beyond the face of the Principal Building, the 
minimum distance to an abutting Lot Line as permitted above, may 
be reduced by: 
1.  1.7 metres (5.6 feet) from a Front Lot Line (northern property 

boundary);  
2.  2.1 metres (6.9 feet) from a Rear Lot Line (southern boundary);  
3. 2.3 metres (7.5 feet) from an Exterior Side Lot Line (western 

boundary);  
4.  1.6 metres (5.2 feet) from an Interior Side Lot Line (eastern 

boundary); 
 

(9) Section 510(2), Unit Separation, shall be waived; 
 

(10) Section 510 (3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived; 
 

(11) Off-Street Parking, Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking, and Accessory Off-
Street Loading Spaces shall be provided in conformity with the requirements of 
Division IV, Parts 9, 10, and 10A, except that: 

 
(a)  Minimum number of accessory off-street Parking Spaces required for 

Rental Apartment Residential Use is varied to 0.53 per unit.  
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9005 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (351 West 3rd Street) 

WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, 

No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763, Rental 
Housing Commitments). 

 
2. The Council hereby authorizes the agreement substantially in the form attached to this bylaw 

between The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and the owner of the lands 
referenced as 351 West 3rd Street, “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763). 

 
3. The Mayor and Corporate Officer are authorized to execute the Housing Agreement and 

any documents required to give effect to the Housing Agreement. 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

PART 2 – TERMS OF INSTRUMENT 
 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT AND SECTION 219 COVENANT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, 
 
BETWEEN: 
 

JPD 351 WEST 3RD DEVELOPMENTS LTD., INC.NO. BC1115619 
#200 - 879 Marine Drive 
North Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V7P 1R7 
 
(the “Owner”) 

 
AND: 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, British 
Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
A. The Owner is the registered owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Local Government Act, 

RSBC 2015, c. 1 and the Community Charter, SBC 2003, c. 26.  
 
C. Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 permits registration of a covenant 

in favour of a municipality in respect of the use of land or the use of a building on or to be 
erected on land, that land is or is not to be built on except in accordance with the covenant 
and that land is not to be subdivided except in accordance with the covenant. 

 
D. Section 483 of the Act permits a local government to, by bylaw, enter into a housing 

agreement that may include terms and conditions regarding the occupancy of the housing 
units identified in the agreement, including respecting the form of tenure of the housing 
units, the availability of the housing units to classes of persons, the administration and 
management of the housing units and the rents and lease, sale or share prices that may 
be charged. 

 
E. The City has adopted a bylaw authorizing this Agreement. 
 
F. The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Section 219 of the 

Land Title Act and section 483 of the Act. 
 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC 2015, c.1 as amended from time 
to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Rent" means with respect to each Mid-Market Rental Unit a rent 

payment amount equal to 10% below the “Private Apartment Average Rents” for 
the corresponding bedroom type in the City of North Vancouver as established by 
CMHC’s Housing Market Information Portal for the year the tenancy is entered 
into; 

 
(c) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 

 
(d) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 

 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 

 
(f) “CMHC” means Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 

 
(g) “Director, Planning and Development” means the chief administrator of the 

Department of Planning of the City and their successors in function and their 
respective nominees; 

 
(h) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700” as amended from time to time; 
 

(i) “Lands” means those lands and premises legally described as: 
 

Parcel Identifier: 007-960-255 
Lot 1 
Block 136 
District Lot 271 
Plan 13998; 

 
(j) “Mid-Market Rental Units” means the 6 Dwelling Units in the Residential Building 

to be constructed on the Lands that are rented to tenants for Affordable Rent; 
 

(k) “Market Rental Units” means all Dwelling Units in the Residential Building other 
than the Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 
(l) “Maximum Household Income” means an annual gross household income 

determined by multiplying Affordable Rent by 12 to yield the households’ annual 
housing costs, and divide by 30% (0.30) to meet the standard definition of 
affordability; 

 
(m) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 

be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(n) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

(o) “Residential Building” means the 5 storey building to be constructed on the Lands 
to be used for Rental Purposes with 53 Dwelling Units, of which 47 Dwelling Units 
will be Market Rental Units and 6 Dwelling Units will be Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 
(p) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 

 
(q) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 

as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No.9004”;  
 

(r) “Section 219 Covenant” means a covenant pursuant to Section 219 of the Land 
Title Act;  

 
(s) “Tenancy Agreement” means an agreement, whether written or oral, express or 

implied, between the Owner and a tenant respecting possession or occupancy of 
a Rental Unit;  

 
(t) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by the City’s Council of “Housing Agreement 

Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005” (Jim Pattison Developments Ltd., 351 West 3rd Street, CD-763, 
Rental Housing Commitments) (the “Commencement Date”) and will continue until the date 
this Agreement is terminated in accordance with sections 2.2 or 8.3(c) (the “Term”). 

 
2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 

Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 7.3, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. SECTION 219 COVENANT  
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City as a covenant in favour of the City pursuant 

to Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 that during the Term of this 
Agreement, it being the intention and agreement of the Owner that the provisions in this 
Agreement be annexed to, and run with and be a charge upon the Lands, that 
notwithstanding the Rezoning Bylaw, the Lands will be used and built on only in strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that:  

 
(a) the Lands must not be subdivided or stratified; 

 
(b) the Rental Units in the Residential Building must be used for Rental Purposes only 

and all Rental Units must be owned and operated by the Owner, provided that the 
Mid-Market Rental Units may be operated by a non-profit entity engaged by the 
Owner and having expertise in non-market housing, with the approval of the 
Director, Planning and Development; and 

 
(c) no Rental Unit in the Residential Building must be occupied for any purpose except 

for Rental Purposes pursuant to a Tenancy Agreement. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

3.2 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 
or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building must be developed, 
built, and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as 
amended from time to time. 

 
3.3 Pursuant to section 219(6) of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 except for the 

negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will indemnify and 
save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, damage, costs 
and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or incur or be put to 
by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, by the Owner, or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents, contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is 
responsible; 

 
(b) the Owner’s default under this Agreement; and 

 
(c) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 
 
4. TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
4.1 The unit mix for Rental Units in the Residential Building will be no fewer than 6 three-bedroom 

units, 6 two-bedroom units, 36 one-bedroom units and 5 studio units or as otherwise 
approved in writing by the Director, Planning and Development in their discretion. 

 
4.2 The 6 Mid-Market Rental Units will be provided in the following unit mix: 1 studio unit, 3 one-

bedroom unit(s), 1 two-bedroom unit, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The Owner may only change 
this mix with the approval in writing by the Director, Planning and Development with such 
approval to be granted in their discretion. The Owner will be entitled to determine the 
locations of the 6 Mid-Market Rental Units within the Residential Building. 

 
4.3 The Owner will enter into a minimum 1 year Tenancy Agreement for each of the Mid-

Market Rental Units which will convert to a month to month tenancy at the end of the 1 year 
term. If such a tenancy is ended prior to the end of the Term, the Owner must rent the Mid-
Market Rental Unit at Affordable Rent.  For greater certainty, at the end of each tenancy, 
the Mid-Market Rental Unit will continue to be rented as a Mid-Market Rental Unit at 
Affordable Rent, which obligation will be ongoing at all times during the Term. 

 
5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 Without limiting section 3.1 of this Agreement: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the management, administration, and associated 
costs with the management and administration of the Rental Units, including the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, will be borne by the Owner or its designated rental agent, 
unless otherwise approved by the City in writing and all Mid-Market Rental Units 
must be managed by one rental agent; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

(b) Advertisement: when the Mid-Market Rental Units first become available, the 
Owner will advertise such units for a minimum of one month on at least two 
common rental property search platforms that allow potential tenants to view 
available properties for rent in North Vancouver without payment of a fee or 
requirement for registration, and the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set 
out in this Agreement prominently in all advertising of Mid-Market Rental Units. 
When a Mid-Market Rental Unit becomes available for a subsequent, new tenancy, 
the Owner will advertise the unit in accordance with the foregoing requirements for 
a period of at least one week; 

 
(c) Tenant Selection: the Owner will make the Mid-Market Rental Units available, both 

at the first tenancy and each subsequent tenancy, in the following order of priority: 
 

(i) If the Residential Building replaces an existing rental building, then tenants 
from the existing rental building on the Lands being replaced who have 
household incomes at or below the Maximum Household Income will be 
provided first right of refusal in the Mid-Market Rental Units, and have first 
priority, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this category for one 
unit, then applicant families with one or more dependents will have priority 
for units with two or more bedrooms and if applicants are equal in this 
regard, then applications will be considered on a first come-first-served 
basis;  

 
(ii) Households who have been displaced from redevelopment elsewhere in 

the City who have household incomes at or below the Maximum Household 
Income will have second priority, provided that if there are multiple 
applicants in this category for one unit, then applicant families with one or 
more dependents will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and 
if applicants are equal in this regard, then applications will be considered 
on a first come-first-served basis 

 
(iii) The Owner will then make any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not 

rented by tenants from the existing building on the Lands available to 
tenants with an annual household income at or below that the Maximum 
Household Income who are either current residents of the City of North 
Vancouver or who work in the City of North Vancouver and have done so 
for at least six months, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this 
category for one unit, then applicant families with one or more dependents 
will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and if applicants are 
equal in this regard, then applications will be considered on a first come-
first-served basis;  

 
(iv) If there are any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not rented by tenants 

who meet the criteria in sections 5.1(d)(i) to (iii) after the expiry of the one-
month advertising period, then the Owner will make such units available to 
tenants who meet the Maximum Household Income requirement; and 

 
(v) Tenants in Mid-Market Rental Units must not have an ownership interest in 

a residential property in the City or in a neighbouring municipality which the 
tenant could otherwise occupy and the Owner will require confirmation from 
the prospective tenant that they meet this requirement at the time of 
tenancy; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

 
(vi) In determining whether a tenant meets the Maximum Household Income 

requirements or the requirement in section 5.1(d)(v), the Owner or its rental 
agent, so long as it acts honestly and in good faith, is entitled to rely on all 
information provided by the prospective tenant and the Owner will have no 
liability if the prospective tenant intentionally or unintentionally provides any 
incorrect information. The Owner is under no obligation to monitor or 
update the financial circumstances of the tenant once the lease is signed. 

 
(d) Rent Amount and Permitted Increases: Affordable Rent for Mid-Market Rental 

Units is to be determined at the time of tenancy. Rent amounts may be 
subsequently increased below or at the permitted annual rent increase then set 
under the RT Act;  

 
(e) Compliance with applicable laws: without restricting the foregoing, the Owner will 

comply with all applicable provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or 
municipal enactments imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential 
tenancies; 

 
(f) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement diligently 

and in good faith; 
 

(g) Information Regarding Unit Availability:  If the City establishes a register for 
availability of Mid-Market Rental Units within the City, the Owner will provide to the 
City information regarding any Mid-Market Rental Units that become available for 
rent, in a form acceptable to the Director, Planning and Development;  

 
(h) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 

the Personal Information Protection Act (as amended from time to time) the Owner 
will, on an annual basis at the time of Business License renewal and upon any 
other request by the City, supply to the City copies of any documentation in 
possession of the Owner necessary to establish compliance with the Owner’s 
obligations under this Agreement.  

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner must act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 
6.2 If the default is not corrected within the time specified, the Owner will pay to the City on 

demand by the City 200 percent of the difference between current market rent, as determined 
by a third-party appraiser, and Affordable Rent for each Mid-Market Rental Unit in default for 
the default year to the end of the Term of the Agreement. The monies collected from default 
will be deposited to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund.  

 
6.3 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 

rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 
 
6.4 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is 

not fully remediable by the mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

sustained by the City and to the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of 
adequate monetary compensation. 

 
6.5 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 

entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 
6.6 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 

public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out and 
that the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement are fair and reasonable and ought 
not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture. 

 
6.7 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.  The Owner acknowledges that 
specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise) or other equitable relief may 
be the only adequate remedy of a default by the Owner under this Agreement. 

 
7. LIABILITY 
 
7.1 Except for the negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will 

indemnify and save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, 
actions, loss, damage, costs and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for 
or suffer or incur or be put to by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 

contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible; and 
 

(b) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 
provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 

 
7.2 Except to the extent such advice or direction is given negligently, the Owner hereby releases 

and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of advice or direction respecting the 
ownership, operation or management of the Lands for the provision of housing for Rental 
Purposes which has been or hereafter may be given to the Owner by all or any of them. 

 
7.3 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement will survive the 

expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 

 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

8.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 
the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement and notice of this Agreement 
which is required to be filed pursuant to the Local Government Act.  The Owner will bear their 
own costs, legal or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of 
this Agreement. 

 
8.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 
 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

 
(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 

contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

 
(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 

in relation to the use of the Lands. 
 
8.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 
 

(a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 
 

(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 
of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units and the Limited Common 
Property; and 

 
(c) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 

and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
8.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 
8.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 

by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 483 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner. 

 
8.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 

ensure this Agreement and notice of this Agreement is registered against the title to the 
Lands, including any amendments to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title 
Office or the City to effect such registration. 

 
8.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 10 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

8.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 
Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 
8.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
8.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
8.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
City: The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 

141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, British Columbia 
V7M 1H9 
Attention: Director, Planning & Development 
Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
Email: planning@cnv.org 

 
The Owner: JPD 351 WEST 3RD DEVELOPMENTS LTD., INC. NO. 

BC1115619 
#200 - 879 Marine Drive 
North Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V7P 1R7 
Attention: Mitch Cramp 
Email: Cramp@jp-developments.com  
Phone: 604-488-5238 
 

Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 
designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 

 
8.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 

as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 
 
8.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 11 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005 Document: 2441538-v2 

351 West 3rd Street 

 
9. INTERPRETATION 
 
9.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 
9.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 

 
9.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
9.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
9.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
9.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9005”. 

 
9.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia. 
 
9.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THIS AGREEMENT the City and the Owner have executed this Agreement by 
signing the “Form C – General Instrument – Part 1” or “Form D – Executions Continued” attached 
hereto. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

Director CAO 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
CITY CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Amelia Cifarelli, Corporate Officer 
Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: NORTH SHORE NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSE AND CITY PARKS LOAN 
AUTHORIZATION BYLAW, 2024, NO. 9006 

Date: February 1 , 2024 File No: 09-4250-20-0008/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
dated February 1, 2024, entitled "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City 
Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006": 

THAT third reading of the "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks 
Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be rescinded; 

THAT the "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be amended by: 

a) replacing "Neighborhood" with "Neighbourhood"; 
b) replacing the first Whereas clause with the following : 

"WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to design and construct a new 
North Shore Neighbourhood House community facility, Kings Mill 
Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park;" 

c) replacing the second Whereas clause with the following: 
"AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of designing and constructing 
the new North Shore Neighbourhood House community facility, and 
the two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern 
Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of 
$66,475,000, of which the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of debt 
intended to be borrowed from the Municipal Financing Authority for 
these capital projects as authorized by this Bylaw;" 

Document Number: 2466461 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 
Date: February 1, 2024 · 

d) replacing Section 2. with the following: 
"The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake and 
carry out, or cause to be carried out, the design and construction of 
a new North Shore Neighbourhood House community facility, and 
two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park, 
generally in accordance with general plans on file in the municipal 
office and to do all things necessary in connection therewith and 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing:" 

e) replacing Section 2., Subsection A. with the following: 
"To borrow on the credit of the City a total amount not exceeding 
$55,700,000, with up to $49,500,000 being allocated to the North 
Shore Neighbourhood House, up to $4,300,000 being allocated to 
Kings Mill Walk Park and up to $1,900,000 being allocated to 1600 
Eastern Park;" 

AND THAT the "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be given third reading, as amended. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Council Report: "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw", dated January 10, 2024, from the Chief Financial Officer 
(CityDocs 2464234) 

2. "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9006" - Redlined version (CityDocs 2452739 v3) 

3. "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9006" - Revised (CityDocs 2452739 v4) 

SUMMARY 

The "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9006" (the Bylaw) is being presented to Council to rescind the third reading, 
given at the January 22, 2024 Council meeting, to amend the Bylaw and then be 
considered for third reading, as amended. 

BACKGROUND 

At its regular meeting on January 22, 2024, Council gave three readings to the "North 
Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 
9006" and directed the Corporate Officer to forward the Bylaw to the Inspector of 
Municipalities for review and approval. 

DISCUSSION 

On January 23, 2024, a copy of the Bylaw with the report from the Chief Financial 
Officer, dated January 10, 2024, titled "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City 
Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw" (Attachment #1) was sent to the Inspector of 
Municipalities. 

Page 2 of 3 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 
Date: February 1, 2024 

On January 30, 2024, the City Clerk's Office received a response from the Inspector of 
Municipalities. In the response, it was noted that the Bylaw needs to specify the amount 
of debt to be incurred for each purpose. Therefore, staff have made the necessary 
amendments to the Bylaw (Attachment #2 & #3) to include the total amount of debt to 
be incurred for the North Shore Neighbourhood House ($49.5 million), Kings Mill Walk 
Park ($4.3 million) and 1600 Eastern Park ($1.9 million). 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The financial implications remain the same as described in the report titled "North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw", dated January 10, 
2024, considered by Council at its regular meeting on January 22, 2024. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

These implications remain the same as described in the report titled "North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw", dated January 10, 
2024, considered by Council at its regular meeting on January 22, 2024. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Amelia Cifarel~ 

~ 
Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 3 of 3 



R2024/2-8 

 

R2024/2-9 
 



To: 

From: 

' ~ lJ 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: NORTH SHORE NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSE AND CITY PARKS LOAN 
AUTHORIZATION BYLAW 

Date: January 10, 2024 File No: 05-1705-01-0001/2024 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated January 10, 2024, 
entitled "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization 
Bylaw": 

THAT "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be considered; 

AND THAT the Corporate Officer be directed to submit "North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 
9006" to the Inspector of Municipalities for review and approval. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, 
No. 9006" (CityDocs 2452739) 

SUMMARY 

The timeline of the North Shore Neighbourhood House ("NSNH") Phase 2 
Redevelopment is proposed to be advanced to 2024. This new timing is expected to 
enable the housing provider opportunities to leverage senior government housing 
funding, and deliver 180 non profit rental housing units to the City many years sooner 

Document Number: 2452661 Vl 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw 
Date: January 10, 2024 

than previously planned. A new much needed NSNH facility can also be delivered 
concurrent with the housing and is proposed to be funded with CNV debt financing. 
This Redevelopment advances the "A City for People" priority in Council's 2922-2026 
Strategic Plan. 

Council's Strategic Plan also includes "A Vibrant City" and "A Resilient City" as a 
priorities. A Vibrant City has dynamic public spaces and a Resilient City leads the way 
in climate action and acts as a steward of the environment for future generations. 
In order to advance these priorities, debt financing to support the delivery of two City 
parks (Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park) is also being proposed. 

This report initiates the process to obtain $53.4 million of low cost debt financing from 
the Municipal Finance Authority to fund CNV's portion of the NSNH Phase 2 
Redevelopment, Kings Mill Walk Park, and 1600 Eastern Park projects. 

BACKGROUND 

North Shore Neighbourhood House: 

The NSNH Redevelopment Program is a multiphase redevelopment of an existing CNV 
owned site. Phase 1 is currently under construction and will deliver five stories of non
profit rental housing and a senior's respite centre. Phase 2 can deliver a new NSNH as 
well as fifteen stories of non-profit housing. Phase 3 will deliver a new park following the 
demolition of the existing NSNH facility. 

NSNH is a community resource that has been delivering critical services to the North 
Vancouver community since 1939. With a mission to enhance the lives of community 
members, especially the most vulnerable, NSNH strives to create a safe, healthy, and 
inclusive environment where everyone matters. As one of the largest not-for-profit 
organizations on the North Shore, NSNH employs more than 100 people across 18 
sites, providing a wide range of programs and services that cater to children, families, 
youth, and seniors. 

The main NSNH site is situated at 225 East 2nd Street in North Vancouver's lower 
Lonsdale neighborhood, and serves the community through several major programming 
areas that operate on-site. These areas encompass a range of services aimed at 
improving the lives of community members, with a special focus on those who are most 
vulnerable, and include childcare and children's programs as well as community 
programs and services that service diverse needs, including food security, service 
navigators, edible gardens, and lunch programs for new parents, seniors, and teens. 

The current NSNH facility, built in 1967, is near end of life. The current faci lity is also 
faced with accessibility challenges and lack of storage. Rooms are also needing to be 
used as multi-purpose without the required support equipment and infrastructure. The 
replacement of the existing NSNH facility is critical to ensuring continuity of services. 

Page 2 of6 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw 
Date: January 10, 2024 

Planning for a new 29,000 sq. ft . facility has begun on the Phase 2 site within a three 
story podium. Planning for a draft functional program to address current NSNH 
programming needs has also begun. 

There is also an opportunity to incorporate 15 stories (180 units) of non-profit rental 
housing as part of the Phase 2 project that can contribute to greater livability in the 
community. The City, like many other municipalities, is facing a housing crisis and , with 
the NSNH site rezoned in 2021 and opportunities for funding for non profit rental 
housing emerging, there is an opportunity to advance delivery of the overall Phase 2 
project. The 180 housing units are expected to be funded by senior levels of 
government and the non-profit sector, and require no CNV funding. 

A class "D" estimate has been developed for CNV's portion of the Phase 2 project, 
being the new NSNH facility scope. Total project costs are estimated at $49.5 million. 

Project ($000's) 
Previously Future 

Total 
Appropriated Appropriations 

Base Buildinq and Offsites - 37,200 37,200 
Tenant Improvements - 9,900 9,900 
Total - 49,500 49,500 

Kings Mill Walk Park: 

Kings Mill Walk Park was originally constructed in 2000 as part of the initial commercial 
Harbourside development. In 2014, the upland properties were rezoned to create a 
vibrant mixed use neighbourhood. This work included the reimagining of Kings Mill 
Walk Park. 

Kings Mill Walk Park offers 500 linear meters of shoreline on Burrard Inlet and is a 
destination park for City residents who have limited access to the waterfront. This amount 
of shoreline is over twice the length of Waterfront Park's shoreline (200 linear meters) 
and is an intensely used waterfront section of the regional Spirit Trail. 

In March 2022, Council endorsed the Kings Mill Walk Master Plan following consultation 
with the community. CNV's park plan now includes a new Kings Mill Walk Park for both 
the broader community and the new Harbourside Neighbourhood residents. Residents 
moving into phase one of that development are scheduled to occupy their new homes 
by the end of 2024. 

A reimagined Kings Mill Park includes a series of park zones with distinct programming 
and character. A new park would gradually transition from a more urban experience near 
Fell Avenue to a natural character where the park meets Mackay Creek to the west. The 
main park zones include the Fell Avenue Plaza, an All Ages play area, an off-leash area, 
an open park, and shoreline habitat. Active, accessible circulation and the connection to 
the Spirit Trail is prioritized through a hierarchy of multi-use trail and pathway types and 
connections for pedestrians and cyclists. The renewal of the park will also increase the 
tree canopy and provide critical supporting amenities. 

Page 3 of 6 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw 
Date: January 10, 2024 

The current Kings Mill Walk Park shoreline, situated between Mackay and Mosquito 
Creeks, offers limited ecological value within a regionally significant environmental zone. 
The newly envisioned park shoreline will deliver a restored habitat within a primarily 
industrialized inlet therefore providing an overall net benefit to marine habitat in the 
intertidal and subtidal zones. 

A new park is also planned to include upland and shoreline improvements designed to 
enhance climate and coastal resiliency to seismic events, extreme weather, and sea level 
rise. The new park's grades are expected to be set 1.5m higher than existing to meet 
flood protection requirements and the upland park areas can be densified to prevent 
liquefaction in the event of an earthquake. This scope contributes to the park becoming 
a high capacity, robust, durable park. 

Previously 
Future Appropriations 

Project ($000's) DCC (Parks) Total Appropriated OtherTBD Reserves 
Planning 500 - - 500 
Construction 5,300* 4,300 4,400 14,000 
Total 5,800 4,300 4,400 14,500 

*External funding 

1600 Eastern Park: 

The Parks Master Plan includes the goal of having all residents within 400 metres (or a 
5-minute walk) to a park or public open space. Central Lonsdale is a park deficient 
neighbourhood with low park service levels. 

The addition of a new neighbourhood park in East Central Lonsdale has been identified 
as a priority to help address the above deficiency. The delivery of a park in this densely 
populated area can provide valuable enjoyment and recreational opportunities in close 
proximity to where people in this neighborhood live. 

In conjunction with the 2018 rezoning of the adjacent properties for a new rental building, 
Council endorsed the acquisition of a 0.2 hectare parcel at 1600 Eastern Avenue, using 
dedicated funding in the DCC (Parks) Reserve. In 2019, CNV funding was approved to 
commence the planning and community consultation for this new park, and that work was 
completed in Fall 2021. The resulting park plan, titled the "Oasis of Calm", received strong 
support from the community and includes a circular trellis and central lawn, pollinator 
gardens, a playful water feature, in-ground trampoline, porch swings and hammocks. 

CNV took possession of the new park site in November 2021 and the CNV project team 
is preparing detailed design and construction documents. 

Previously 
Future Appropriations 

Project ($000's) DCC (Parks) Total 
Appropriated OtherTBD 

Reserves 
1600 Eastern Park 75 1,852 548 2,475 
Total 75 1,852 548 2,475 

Page 4 of 6 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw 
Date: January 10, 2024 

DISCUSSION 

CNV does not have the financial capacity to move forward with the above new projects 
in 2024 without additional debt financing. The amount of new debt financing proposed 
to advance the above three projects amounts to $55.8M, as shown in the table below: 

Project 
Future Appropriations 

($000's)** 
NSNH Phase 2* 49,500 
KinQs Mill Walk Park 4,300 
1600 Eastern Park 1,852 
Total 55,652 
*Through the construction periods (2024-2026), short-term debt will be utilized as needed, 
with debt servicing cost (~$2.4M) being funded by CNV's Civic Amenity Reserve. 
**DCC funded components removed. 

The purpose of this report is to request Council's consideration of the North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 to 
enable CNV to raise debt financing needed to close the current funding gap. 

Giving first three readings to the Loan Authorization Bylaw is the first step in engaging 
the Province in the application process as required. If the Bylaw receives three 
readings, the Corporate Officer will send the Bylaw to the Inspector of Municipalities for 
review and approval in accordance with the Community Charter, Section 179(1 ). Once 
the Bylaw has received approval, the Corporate Officer wi ll bring an open report to 
Council outlining the Alternative Approval Process for the redevelopment of the NSNH, 
Kings Mill Walk Park, and 1600 Eastern Park for Council's consideration. The process 
will also eventually require approval from the Municipal Finance Authority. Closing is 
currently targeted for Q3 2024. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Should the full $55.7 million of debt be drawn and converted to long-term debt after the 
2024-2026 construction period, the annual debt servicing costs would be approximately 
$3.5 million, assuming current borrowing rates. These additional debt servicing costs 
are equal to the additional revenues that CNV would generate assuming a one-time 
5.4% tax rate increase. Staff are considering recommending, as part of the 2024-2028 
Financial Planning process, that any increases in taxes be phased in over a three-year 
period, beginning with an additional incremental 1.0% tax levy in 2024. The three year 
phase in period approximates the end of the combined construction periods of the three 
projects. The debt funding and debt service costs associated with the North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan will need to be included in the 2024-2028 
Financial Plan. 

CNV has the financial capacity to service the recommended new debt. The Province 
typically permits municipalities in British Columbia to take on additional borrowing so 
long as annual debt servicing costs (principal and interest) do not exceed 25% of 

Page 5 of 6 



REPORT: North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw 
Date: January 10, 2024 

municipal revenue. Assuming all of CNV's credit facilities are fully drawn, CNV's debt 
serving costs would be approximately 10% of revenues, well within prescribed limits. 

With additional debt, it is also recommended that CNV preserve financial capacity to be 
able to respond to unexpected events should they occur. As a part of the Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre ("HJCRC") Financial Strategy endorsed by Council in 
January 2022, a $20M "safety net" was created by ensuring that balances in CNV's Tax 
Sale Land Principle Reserve were maintained at no less than $20 million. Now that 
86% of the HJCRC project has been successfully tendered, the overall financial risk 
from the HJCRC has been reduced. Staff recommend maintaining the $20M "safety 
net" for both the HJCRC and for NSNH projects. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report was prepared in collaboration with other CNV departments, specifically 
Strategic Initiatives, Engineering, Parks & Environment, and Clerks, as well as the City 
Solicitor. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The securing of debt financing enables the advancement of the NSNH Phase 2 project 
that supports the "A City for People" priority included in Council's 2022-2026 Strategic 
Plan, including initiatives to "Advance to explore innovative housing policy that includes 
protection and expansion of rental housing stock", and "Continue to build partnerships 
with other levels of government and housing providers to deliver more housing diversity 
and affordability" and to generally improve community well-being. 

The recommended debt financing will also enable the advancement of two parks that 
support Council's priorities for "A Vibrant City" and "A Resilient City", and specifically the 
initiatives to "Activate Public Spaces - parks, streets, plazas, outdoor areas - for 
residents to gather together, interact and engage in activities" and "Implement the Kings 
Mill Walk Park Master Plan". 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 6 of 6 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9006 

A Bylaw to authorize the borrowing of $55,700,000 for the purpose of the design 
and construction of a new North Shore Neighborhood House and City Parks 

WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to construct a new North Shore Neighborhood House, Kings 
Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park; 

AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of constructing the new North Shore Neighborhood House, 
Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of 
$66,475,000, of which the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of debt intended to be borrowed 
from the Municipal Financing Authority as authorized by this Bylaw; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “North Shore Neighborhood
House Loan Authorization and City Parks Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”.

2. The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake and carry out, or cause to
be carried out, the construction of a new North Shore Neighborhood House, Kings Mill Walk
Park and 1600 Eastern Park, generally in accordance with general plans on file in the
municipal office and to do all things necessary in connection therewith and without limiting
the generality of the foregoing:

A. To borrow on the credit of the City a sum not exceeding $55,700,000;

B. To acquire all such real property, easements, rights-of-way, licences, rights or
authorities as may be requisite or desirable for or in connection with the construction
of the North Shore Neighborhood House, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park.

3. The maximum term for which debentures may be issued to secure the debt created by this
Bylaw is 30 years.

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

MAYOR 

CORPORATE OFFICER 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v3 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9006 

A Bylaw to authorize the borrowing of $55,700,000 for the purpose of the design 
and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks 

WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to design and construct a new North Shore Neighbourhood 
House community facility, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park; 

AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of designing and constructing the new North Shore 
Neighbourhood House community facility, and the two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park 
and 1600 Eastern Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of $66,475,000, of which 
the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of debt intended to be borrowed from the Municipal 
Financing Authority for these capital projects as authorized by this Bylaw; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “North Shore Neighbourhood
House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”.

2. The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake and carry out, or cause to
be carried out, the design and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House
community facility, and two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park, 
generally in accordance with general plans on file in the municipal office and to do all things
necessary in connection therewith and without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

A. To borrow on the credit of the City a total amount not exceeding $55,700,000, with up
to $49,500,000 being allocated to the North Shore Neighbourhood House, up to 
$4,300,000 being allocated to Kings Mill Walk Park and up to $1,900,000 being 
allocated to 1600 Eastern Park; 

B. To acquire all such real property, easements, rights-of-way, licences, rights or
authorities as may be requisite or desirable for or in connection with the construction
of the North Shore Neighbourhood House, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern
Park.

3. The maximum term for which debentures may be issued to secure the debt created by this
Bylaw is 30 years.

READ a first time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of 
January, 2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

RESCINDED third reading on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

Deleted: sum_ _____._ ________________ -



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v3 

READ a third time, as amended, on the <> day 
of <>, 2024. 

APPROVED by the Inspector of Municipalities 
on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

MAYOR 

CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v4 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9006 

A Bylaw to authorize the borrowing of $55,700,000 for the purpose of the design 
and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks 

WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to design and construct a new North Shore Neighbourhood 
House community facility, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park; 

AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of designing and constructing the new North Shore 
Neighbourhood House community facility, and the two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park 
and 1600 Eastern Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of $66,475,000, of which 
the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of debt intended to be borrowed from the Municipal 
Financing Authority for these capital projects as authorized by this Bylaw; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “North Shore Neighbourhood
House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”.

2. The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake and carry out, or cause to
be carried out, the design and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House
community facility, and two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park,
generally in accordance with general plans on file in the municipal office and to do all things
necessary in connection therewith and without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

A. To borrow on the credit of the City a total amount not exceeding $55,700,000, with up
to $49,500,000 being allocated to the North Shore Neighbourhood House, up to
$4,300,000 being allocated to Kings Mill Walk Park and up to $1,900,000 being
allocated to 1600 Eastern Park;

B. To acquire all such real property, easements, rights-of-way, licences, rights or
authorities as may be requisite or desirable for or in connection with the construction
of the North Shore Neighbourhood House, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern
Park.

3. The maximum term for which debentures may be issued to secure the debt created by this
Bylaw is 30 years.

READ a first time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of 
January, 2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

RESCINDED third reading on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v4 

READ a third time, as amended, on the <> day 
of <>, 2024. 

APPROVED by the Inspector of Municipalities 
on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

MAYOR 

CORPORATE OFFICER 



NOTICE OF MOTION 

9. B.C. Arts Council Funding – File: 01-0400-01-0001/2024

Submitted by Councillor McIlroy

RECOMMENDATION:

WHEREAS investing in arts, culture, and heritage has proven social, economic,
and educational benefits for communities small and large across the province;

AND WHEREAS the arts, culture, and heritage sector has been chronically
underfunded in BC compared to other regions in Canada;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request that the Province of BC
increase the BC Arts Councils’ annual budget to a minimum of $55 million in the
2025/26 budget.

Background Information, January 31, 2024



Background Information:   
 
Arts, culture, and heritage organizations, workers, and practitioners, are one of the few 
sectors in every single community in British Columbia. The sector contributes roughly 
$8.6 billion to the province’s GDP, employs 154,800 workers, and plays a critical role in 
supporting a vibrant tourism industry. Studies have proven that every dollar invested in 
arts, culture, and heritage creates a four-dollar return on investment. 
 
Despite the proven social, educational, and economic benefits of the arts, culture, and 
heritage sector, British Columbia has one of the worst records of investing in the arts of 
any province in Canada. For a nearly 20-year period from the early 2000s to the late 
2010s, the Government of British Columbia invested less in arts, culture, and heritage 
than any province in the country. In 2010, for example, 89% of all arts, culture, and 
heritage organizations in BC received less provincial support than similar organizations 
in other provinces. While today BC is no longer in last place, this legacy of 
underinvestment continues to impact the capacity and sustainability of the sector. 
 
And despite this chronic underinvestment, BC’s arts, culture, and heritage sector 
consistently outperforms other provinces. Cultural workers represent 5.4% of BC’s 
workforce, higher than the national average of 4.4%. Since 2020, BC has been the only 
province in Canada to have a cultural sector that has shown positive GDP growth. 
 
In the 2017 provincial election, both the BC NDP and BC Liberal Party pledged to 
increase annual funding for arts, culture, and heritage. The BC NDP pledged to double 
the BC Arts Council budget over four years to $48 million annually. The BC Liberal 
Party pledged to maintain 2017 funding levels for the BC Arts Council at $24 million 
annually but to also allocate $15 million in new funding for the BC music fund and $5 
million in new funding for the community gaming grant program. Funding the arts, 
culture, and heritage sector crosses partisan divides and with cultural organizations 
being present in every community in the province, also crosses urban/rural divides. 
 
Now, seven years after taking power, the BC NDP has only raised the BC Arts Council 
budget to $39.6 million annually. When adjusted for inflation, the initial pledge of $48 
million would be worth slightly more than $58 million. In 2023 BC’s arts, culture, and 
heritage sector saw the Bateman Gallery and the operators of Point Ellice House 
Museum & Gardens close due to unsustainable funding. That same year the closures of 
significant arts and culture events like the Vancouver Folk Music Festival or the 
Squamish Constellation Festival were avoided by special one-time funding from the 
Ministry of Tourism, Arts, Culture, and Sport. Across the arts, culture, and heritage 
sector, visitors have been slow to return to cultural events and spaces after the COVID-



19 pandemic. At the same time, the past several years have seen a cost of living crisis 
raise the prices of virtually all products and services and a series of unprecedented 
climate disasters that have made the regular operations of cultural organizations more 
unpredictable. 
 
To support the arts, culture, and heritage sector during the COVID-19 pandemic and 
slow recovery, the Province of BC has made record one-time investments in the sector. 
In 2023 the BC Arts Council delivered $71 million in special funding which delayed the 
threat of significant closures in the sector. As is shown by the 2023 BC Arts, Culture, 
and Heritage Sector Insights Report that surveyed cultural workers and organizations, 
significant risk factors exist that undermine the sustainability of the sector. Nearly a 
quarter (23%) of organizations that responded to the survey are in “somewhat or very 
unstable cash flow” positions and 17% of respondents are concerned that their 
organization is at risk of “insolvency, bankruptcy, or ceasing operations within the next 
12 months.” More than one-third (34%) of organizations reported that they rely on 
special one-time recovery/resiliency funding to keep them operating. The survey also 
shows that ticket sales and attendance levels are major risk factors for the sector, with 
43% of organizations reporting negative sales trends over the past year. 
 
At the individual level, the 2023 BC Arts, Culture, and Heritage Sector Insights Report 
also contains worrying data. The survey shows that 42% of respondents say they do not 
currently make a living wage. Survey respondents included leaders of arts and culture 
organizations, individual artists and other cultural practitioners. As numerous other 
sources of data show, wages for women, transgender, non-binary, BIPOC, Deaf, and 
disabled cultural workers can be as much as 31% lower than cisgender men working in 
the sector.  
 
The BC Arts Council (BCAC) is the source of provincial funding that is the most widely 
accessible to the arts, culture, and heritage sector. Created in 1995 as an agency of the 
Province of British Columbia under the Arts Council Act, BCAC is mandated to nurture 
and support arts and cultural activity in communities across British Columbia. In its 
2022/23 fiscal year BCAC distributed funding to 1723 individuals and organizations from 
its regular annual budget and 465 individuals and organizations in special one-time 
supplemental funding. With its current level of funding, BCAC supports roughly 66% of 
total funding requests. BCAC funding is delivered to organizations and individuals in 
every region of the province. 
 


	1 Agenda�
	2 Minutes�
	*3 MV Board in Brief
	No PH - 351 West 3rd St
	Report - 351 West 3rd St
	1-Map
	2-Architectural Plans
	3-Landscape Plans
	4  Zoning Variances & Parking�
	5-ADP Resolution - Oct 28 2022
	6-ADP Resolution - Oct 23 2023
	7-Consultation

	Submissions�
	Notice�

	4 Bylaw 9004�
	5 Bylaw 9005�
	6 NSNH & City Parks Loan Authorizaton Bylaw 9006
	6-1 Report Jan 10 2024
	6-2 Bylaw 9006 - Redlined Version
	6-3 Bylaw 9006 - Final Version

	7 Bylaw 9006 - Rescind 3rd Reading
	8 Bylaw 9006 - Amend 3rd Reading
	9 BC Arts Council Funding�



